@ LIETUVOS DUJOS

To: The Securities Commission of the Republic 6 April 2009
of Lithuania

CONFIRMATION OF RESPONSIBLE PERSONS

Following Art. 21 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and the Rules for the
Drawing up and the Submission of Periodic and Additional Information approved by the
Securities Commission of the Republic of Lithuania, we, Viktoras Valentukevi¢ius, General
Manager and Giedr¢ Glinskiené, Deputy General Manager-Chief Financial Officer of AB
Lietuvos Dujos, hereby confirm that to the best of our knowledge, the attached AB Lietuvos
Dujos Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the Year Ended 31
December 2008 Prepared according to International Financial Reporting Standards as Adopted
by the European Union Presented together with Independent Auditor’s Report, give a true and
fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial status and profit of AB Lietuvos Dujos and the
Group; and the Consolidated Annual Report presents a true and fair review of the business
development and business activities, AB Lietuvos Dujos Consolidated and Parent Company’s
status including the description of the key risks and uncertainties.

/] )

General Manager Wé Viktoras Valentukevi¢ius
L

/ Giedré Glinskiené

Deputy General Manager-Chief Financial Officer
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of AB Lietuvos Dujos

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying 2008 financial statements of AB Lietuvos Dujos, a public limited liability company
registered in the Republic of Lithuania (hereinafter the Company), and the consolidated financial statements of

AB Lietuvos Dujos and subsidiary UAB Palangos P
of 31 December 2008, the statements of income,

erlas (hereinafter the Group) which comprise the balance sheets as
changes in equity and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes

(comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes).

Managerﬁent's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company's management is responsible f
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, a

or the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
s adopted by the European Union. This responsibility

includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of

financial statements that are free from materia

| misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion o
accordance with International Standards on
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requiremen

n these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in

Auditing as set forth by the International Federation of Accountants.

ts and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable

assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether du
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s prep

e to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
aration and fair presentation of the financial

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of

expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
appropriateness of accounting policies use

of the entity’s in

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

ternal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
d and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit

opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
AB Lietuvos Dujos and the Group as of 31 December 2008, and their financial performance and their cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union.

Report on Other Legal and Requlatory Requirements

Furthermore, we have read the consolidated Annual Report for the year ended 31 December 2008 and have not noted
any material inconsistencies between the financial information included in it and the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

UAB ERNST & YOUNG BALTIC
Audit company’s licence No. 001335

Auditor'sticence

President

The audit was completed on 3 March 2009.

A member firm of Ernst & Young Global



APROVED
by the General Meeting of Sharcholders of AB Lictuvos dujos

ol April 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120058523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LT thousand unless otherwise stated)
Balance sheets
Group Company
As of 3t As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December December
Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007
ASSETS
A. Non-current assets 2,249,069 2,220,673 2,252,636 2,223,695
l. Intangible assets 4 3,765 3,487 3,738 3,482
Il.  Property, plant and equipment 5 2245239 2,218,707 2,238,096 2,209,401
H.1. Land 183 183 183 183
1.2, Buildings and structures 2,050,832 2,059,625 2,044,127 2,052,776
12,1, Buildings 82,994 82,542 76,289 75,693
11.2.2.  Transmission networks and refated installations 1,268,382 1,313,874 1,268,382 1,313,874
11,2.3.  Distribution networks and related installations 689,042 854,101 689,042 854,101
I1.2.4. Other buildings and structures 9,514 9,108 9,514 9,108
1.3. Machinery and equipment 84,814 84,839 84,814 84,839
Il.4. Vehicles 13,596 12,025 13,577 11,994
I1.5. Other equipment, tools and devices 32,807 31,123 32 584 30,754
I1.8. Other property, plant and equipment 4,316 3,995 4,316 3,005
11.7. Construction in progress 58,601 24,917 58,495 24 860
lll.  Non-current financial assets 85 75 10,802 10,812
i11.1. Investments into subsidiaries 6 - ; 10,737 10,737
IIL.2. Non-current accounts receivable 7 685 75 &85 75
V. Deferred tax asset 21 - 404 - -
B. Current assets 280,197 238,283 275,840 234,231
I Inventories and prepayments 58,660 109,388 58,638 109,370
1.1, inventories 8 58,174 109,064 58,159 109,048
L1.1. Raw materials, spare parts and other inventories 2,692 2,180 2,991 2,159
1.2,  Goods for resale (including natural gas) 55182 106,904 55,168 108,889
1.2, Prepayments 486 324 479 322
1. Accounts receivable 9 133,212 91,579 133,207 91,524
H.1. Trade receivables 130,878 88,380 130,882 88,382
H.2. Prepaid income tax 1,852 - 1,844 -
11.3. Other receivables 482 3,199 481 3,142
lIl. Other current assets 10 4,099 3,722 . -
IV, Cash and cash equivalents 114 84,226 33,504 83,995 33,337
Totai assets 2,529,266 2,458,958 2,528,476 2,457,926

(cont'd on the next page)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,



APROVED
by the General Meeting of Sharcholders of AB Lietuvos dujos

Y April 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120059523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Balance sheets (cont’d)
Group Company

As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December December

Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

C. Equity 1,882,305 1,929,787 1,881,045 1,928,825
. Share capital 12 469,068 469,068 469,068 469,068
Il. Reserves 13 1,411,775 1,357,881 1,409,678 1,355,991
I.1. Legal reserve 23,160 17,962 22,983 17,795
I1.2. Other reserves 1,388,615 1,339,919 1,386,695 1,338,196
Ill. Retained earnings 21 1,462 102,838 2,299 103,766
D. Liabilities 646,961 529,169 647,431 529,101
. Non-current liabilities 415,223 338,876 415,750 338,876
1.1. Non-current borrowings 15 8,576 10,720 8,576 10,720
[.2. Grants (deferred revenue) 14 164,212 137,231 164,212 137,231
1.3. Deferred tax liability 21 242,435 190,925 242,962 190,925
Il.  Current liabilities 231,738 190,293 231,681 190,225
II.1. Current portion of non-current borrowings 15 2,144 10,839 2.144 10,839
I.2. Trade payables 16 180,951 119,515 180,941 119,498
11.3. Prepayments received 10,536 15,170 10,529 15,152
11.4. Income tax payable < 12,950 . 12,950
I1.5. Payroll related liabilities 7,901 6,555 7,861 6,524
I1.6. Other current liabilities 30,206 25,264 30,206 25,262
Total equity and liabilities 2,529,266 2,458,956 2,528,476 2,457,926

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Viktoras ValentukeviCius 3 March 2009

Chief Accountant Zydriinas Augutis 3 March 2009




APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos dujos

Olscremvismy, April 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120059523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Income statements
Group Company
Notes 2008 2007 2008 2007
| Sales 1,555,366 1,024,264 1,554,061 1,022,881
Il.  Cost of sales 17 (1,240,900)  (675,569)  (1,240,679) (675,348)
Il Gross profit 314,466 348,695 313,382 347,533
IV. Operating expenses 18 (252,736)  (231,328) (251,616) (230,268)
V. Other operating activities income (net) 19 5,869 7,280 5,869 7,281
VI. Profit from operations 67,599 124,647 67,635 124,546
VIl. Financial and investing activities 20 5,674 685 5,443 530
VIL1. Income 6,537 3,034 6,306 2,879
VII.2. Expenses (863) (2,349) (863)  (2,349)
VIIl. Profit before tax 73,273 125,332 73,078 125,076
IX. Income tax 21 (9,038) (21,354) (9,141) (21,310)
IX.1. Current period income tax (18,841) (25,600) (18,820) (25,566)
IX.2. Deferred income tax 9,803 4,246 9,679 4,256
X. Net profit 64,235 103,978 63,937 103,766
Basic and diluted earnings per share (LTL) 22 0.14 0.22 0.14 0.22

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Viktoras Valentukevi€ius 3 March 2009

Chief Accountant Zydrinas Augutis 3 March 2009




APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos dujos

o] e April 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120059523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Statements of changes in equity (cont’d)
Other Retained
Company Notes Share capital Legal reserve reserves earnings Total
Balance as of 1 January 2007 469,068 14,838 1,312,013 59,140 1,855,059
Transfer to legal reserve - 2,957 - (2,957) -
Transfer to other reserves - - 26,183 (26,183) -
Dividends declared 23 - - - (30,000) (30,000)
Net profit for the year . - - 103,766 103,766
Balance as of 31 December
2007 469,068 17,795 1,338,196 103,766 1,928,825
Transfer to legal reserve - 5,188 - (5,188) -
Transfer to other reserves - - 48,499 (48,499) -
Dividends declared 23 - - - (50,000) (50,000)
Net profit for the year = = - 63,937 63,937
Revaluation of deferred income
tax due to change of income
tax rate 21 - - - (61,717) (61,717)
Balance as of 31 December
2008 469,068 22,983 1,386,695 2,299 1,881,045

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Viktoras Valentukevi€ius 3 March 2009

L /al =
Chief Accountant Zydriinas Augutis k Hug ,J/ 3 March 2009
v
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APROVED
by the General Meeting of Sharcholders of AB Lictuvos dujos

[v)) Aprit 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120059523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Cash flows statements
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
I. Cash flows from (to) operating activities
1.1. Netprofit 64,235, 103,978 63,937, 103,766

Adjustments of non-cash items:

1.2.  Depreciation and amortisation 94,358 94,503 94 111 94,269
1.3. (Gain) on propesty, plant and equipment, doubtful

trade accounts receivable and inventories write-

off and disposal (161) {1,832) (161) (1,832)
L4. (Reversal of) impairment for property, plant and

equipment, finrancial assets, allowance for

doubtfui trade accounts receivable and

inventories 1,448 (1,848} 1,448 {1,948)
1.6. Income tax expenses 9,038, 21 354 9,141, 21310
1.6. Interest (income) (5,099) (2,688) (4,868) (2,533)
I.7.  Interest expenses 862 2,346 862 2,346
1.8. loss on foreign currency exchange 1 1 9 1
1.9.  Elimination of other financial activity results (122) (B77) (122) (577)
1.10. Amortisation of the grants, deferred revenue and
other adjustments of non-cash items {3,738) (3,144) (3,738) {3,145)
160,822 211,993 160,611 211,657
Changes in working capital:
I.41. Decrease {increase) in inventories 51,028 (83,480) 51,028 (83,485)
1.12. (Increase) in trade accounts receivable (43,020) (35,227) (43,022) (35,242)
[.13. Decrease {increase) in other accounts receivable
and prepayments 2,332 (2,686) 2,288 (2,732)
l.14, Increase in trade accounts payable 61,015 59 301 61,021 59,463
(.15, Increase in other accounts payable and other
current liabilities 29,203 38,444 29,206 38,447
1.16. Income tax (paid) (33,636)  (23,184) (33.614)  (23,139)
Net cash flows from operating activities 227,744 165,161 227,518 164,969

il. Cash flows from {to} investing activities
1.1, (Acquisitions) of property, plant and equipment

and intangibie assets (122,861) (117,288) (122,754) (116,799)
Il.2. Proceeds from sales of property, plant and
equipment 633 3,428 633 3,427
IL.3. Recovery of non-current loans and accounts
receivable 10 6 10 8
It.4. Proceeds from sales of financial assets - 5 - 5
.5, {Increase) in term deposits (376) (37) - -
1.6, Interest received 5099 2,688 4,868 2,533
Net cash flows (to) investing activities (117,495)  (111,198) {117,243)  {110,828)

{cant’d on the next page)
The accompanying notes are an integral past of these financial statements.



APROVED
by the General Meeting of Shareholders of AB Lietuvos dujos

Ofl s April 2009
AB LIETUVOS DUJOS, company code 120059523, Aguony Str. 24, Vilnius, Lithuania
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)
Cash flows statements (cont’d)
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
lll. Cash flows from (to) financing activities
ll.1. Dividends (paid) (50,052) (29,969) (50,052)  (29,969)
I1.2.  Loans received - 186,451 - 186,451
3. Loans (repaid) (10,839) (201,022) (10,839) (201,022)
Il.4. Grants received 2,185 3,004 2,185 3,004
lIl.5. Interest (paid) (911)  (2,392) (911) (2,392)
Net cash flows (to) financing activities (59,617) (43,928) (59,617)  (43,928)
VL. Netincrease in cash and cash equivalents 50,632 10,035 50,658 10,213
V. Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 33,504 23,559 33,337 23,124
VI. Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 84,226 33,594 83,995 33337

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

General Manager Viktoras Valentukevi€ius W 3 March 2009

Chief Accountant Zydriinas Augutis C i ;J 3 March 2009
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Notes to the financial statements
General information

AB Lietuvos Dujos (hereinafter the Company) is a public limited liability company registered in the Republic of Lithuania.
The address of its registered office is as follows:

Aguony Str. 24,
Vilnius, LT- 03212,
Lithuania.

The Company is engaged in transmission, distribution and supply of natural gas. The Company was registered on
23 November 1990. The Company’s shares are traded on the NASDAQ OMX Vilnius Stock Exchange on the Main trade
list.

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the shareholders of the Company were as follows:

Number of shares held Percentage
E.ON Ruhrgas International AG 182,534,384 38.9
OAD Gazprom 173,847 696 371
State Property Fund 83,030,387 17.7
Other shareholders 29,655,807 6.3
469,068,254 100.0

All the shares of the Company are ordinary registered shares with a par value of LTL 1 each and were fully paid as of
31 December 2008 and 2007. The Company did not hold its own shares.

The Company consists of the Centre of Administration and Gas Transmission and & branches.

The Group comprises AB Lietuvos Dujos and it's subsidiary UAB Palangos Perlas (hereinafter the Group).
The information of UAB Palangos Perlas as of 31 December 2008 is as follows:

Address of Part of shares

registered controlled by Share Current year
Company office the Group (%) capital profit Equity Main activity
Restaurant and
UAB Palangos Gintaro Str, 36, accommodation
Perlas Palanga 100 9,704 206 12,097 facilities

The average number of employees of the Group and the Company in 2008 was 1,821 and 1,792, respectively (1,813 and
1,783 in 2007, respectively).

Activities of AB Lietuvos Dujos are regulated by the Law on Natural Gas No. X-1054 (hereinafter — the Law) as of 20
March 2007 of the Repubiic of Lithuania. This Law requires unbundling of the accounts among each of the Company’s
main activities: transmission, distribution and supply. The Company keeps accounts based on the Law requirements.
The Company's activity segments are transmission, distribution and supply and other activity.

Based on the provisions of the Natural Gas Law, the Company’s activities are subject to licensing and regulating by
the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter the Commission). On 18 December 2001
the Commission granted the Company Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution licenses and on 16 May 2002
the Commission granted a Natural Gas Supply license. The licenses have no expiration date, but are subject to meeting
certain requirements and may be revoked based on the respective decision of the Commission. The Government of the
Republic of Lithuania by its Resolution No. 1304 as of & December 2007 has approved the new Regulations for
Licensing the Transmission, Distribution, Storage, Liguefaction and Supply of Natural Gas (bereinafter the Regulations},
which are implementing the provisions of the Law on Natural Gas. According to the Regulations the licences for the
transmission, distribution and supply of gas earlier granted to the Company have been renewed by the Commission in
2008. The Commission also sets transmission, distribution and supply gas price caps.

The management of the Company approved these financial statements on 3 March 2009. The shareholders of

the Company have a statutory right to either approve these financial statements or not approve them and require a new
set of financial statements to be prepared.

10



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in |.TL. thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles

The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements for 2008 are
as follows:

2.1. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Internationat Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS),
as adopted by the European Union (hereinafier the EU).

Adoption of new and/or changed IFRSs and IFRIC inferpretations

The Group and the Company has adopted the following new and amended IFRS and international Financial Report
Interpretation Committee (hereinafter IFRIC) interpretations during the year:

- Amendments o IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement and IFRS 7 Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Reclassification of Financial Assets;
-IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions.

The principal effects of these changes are as follows:
Amendments to IAS 39 and IFRS 7 — Reclassification of Financial Assets

Through these amendments Internationaj Accounting Standards Board (hereinafter IASB) implemented additional
options for reclassification of certain financial instruments categorised as held-for-trading or available-for-sale under
specified circumstances. Related disclosures were added te IFRS 7. The Group and the Company did not have financial
instruments caught by these amendments.

IFRIC 11 IFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share Transactions

The interpretation provides guidance on classification of transactions as equity-settled or as cash-settied and also gives
guidance on how to account for share-based payment arrangements that involve two or more entities within the same
group in the individual financial statements of each group entity. The Group and the Company has not issued
instruments caught by this interpretation.

Standards issued but not yef effective:

The Group and the Company has not applied the following IFRSs and IFRIC Interpretations that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

Amendments to IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of intemational Financial Reporting Standards and IAS 27 Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009).

The amendment to IFRS 1 allows an entity to determine the ‘cost’ of investments in subsidiaries, jointly controlled entities
or associates in its opening IFRS financial statements in accordance with 1AS 27 or using a deemed cost. The
amendment to IAS 27 requires all dividends from a subsidiary, jointly controlled entity or associate to be recognised in
the income statement in the separate financial statements. The new reguirements affect only the parenf's separate
financial statements and do not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements. The amendment will bave no
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group and the Company, as the Group and the Company has
already adopted IFRS.

Besides, a new version of IFRS 1 was issued in November 2008. It retains the substance of the previous version, but
within a changed structure and replaces the previous version of IFRS 1 (effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 July 2009 once adopted by the EU).

Amendment to IFRS 2 Share-based Payment (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2008).

The amendment clarifies the definition of a vesting condition and prescribes the treatment for an award that is effectively
cancelled. The amendment will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group and the Company,
as the Group and the Company does not have share-based payments.

11



AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont'd}
2.1. Basis of preparation (cont’d)

Amendments to iIFRS 3 Business Combinations and |1AS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements (effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009 once adopted by the EU).

Revised IFRS 3 (IFRS 3R) introduces a number of changes in the accounting for business combinations that wili impact
the amount of goodwill recognised, the reported results in the period that an acquisition occurs, and future reported
results. IAS 27R requires that a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary (without loss of control) is accounted for
as an equity transaction. Therefore, such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwilt, nor wilk it give rise to a gain or
loss. Furthermore, the amended standard changes the accounting for losses incurred by the subsidiary as welt as the
loss of control of a subsidiary. Other consequential amendments were made to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows, IAS 12
Income Taxes, |AS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates, 1AS 28 Investment in Associates and IAS 31
Interests in Joint Ventures. In accordance with the transitional requirements of these amendments, the Group and
the Company will adopt them as a prospective change, if have business combination fransactions in the future.
Accordingly, assets and liabilities arising from business combinations prior to the date of application of the revised
standards will not be restated.

IFRS 8 Operating Segments (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009).

The standard sets out requirements for disclosure of information about an entity’s operating segments and also about the
entity's products and services, the geographical areas in which it operates, and its major customers. IFRS 8 replaces
IAS 14 Segment Reporfing. The Group and the Company expects that the operaling segments determined in
accordance with IFRS 8 will not materially differ from the business segments previously identified under IAS 14.

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2009).

This amendment introduces a number of changes, including introduction of a new terminology, revised presentation of
equity transactions and introduction of a new statement of comprehensive income as well as amended requirements
related to the presentation of the financial statements when they are restated retrospectively. As of the date of release of
these financial statements the Group and the Company was not decided whether it will present all items of recognised
income and expense in one single statement or in two linked statements.

Amendment to |IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2008},

The revised standard eliminates the option of expensing all borrowing costs and requires borrowing costs to be
capitalised if they are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a gualifying asset. In
accordance with the fransitional reqguirements of the Standard, the Group and the Company will adopt this as a
prospective change. Accordingly, borrowing costs suitable to be capitalised, according to the requirements of the
standard, incurred after 1 January 2009 will be added to qualifying assets with a commencement date after 1 January
2009. No changes will be made for borrowing costs incurred to this date that have been expensed,

Amendments to IAS 32 Financial Instruments. Presentation and |IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Staternents — Puttable
Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising on Liguidation ({effective for financial years beginning on or after
1 January).

The revisions provide a limited scope exception for puttable instruments to be classified as equity if they fulfil a number of
specified features. The amendments to the standards will have no impact on the financial position or performance of
the Group and the Company, as the Group and the Company has not issued such instruments.

Amendment to IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement — Eligible Hedged Hems (effective for
financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009).

The amendment addresses the designation of a one-sided risk in a hedged item, and the designation of inflation as a
hedged risk or portion in particular situations. It clarifies that an entity is permitied to designate a portion of the fair value
changes or cash flow variability of a financial instrument as hedged item. The amendment will have no impact on the
financial position or performance of the Group and the Company, as the Group and the Company has not entered into
any such hedges.

Improvements to IFRSs

in May 2008 IASB issued its first omnibus of amendments to its standards, primarily with a view to removing

inconsistencies and clarifying wording. There are separate transitional provisions for each standard; most of the changes

are effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009. The Group and the Company anticipates that these

amendments to standards will have no material effect on the financial statements.

e IFRS 7 Financial instruments: Disclosures. Removal of the reference to ‘total interest income’ as a component of
finance costs.

» [AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements. Assets and liabilities classified as held for trading in accordance with
IAS 39 are not automatically classified as current in the balance sheet.

« IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Change in Accounting Esfimates and Errors. Clarification that only implementation
guidance that is an integral part of an iIFRS is mandatory when selecting accounting policies.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY'S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting principies {cont’d)

2.1. Basis of preparation {cont’d}

IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period. Clarification that dividends declared after the end of the reporting period are
not obligations.

IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. Items of property, plant and equipment held for rental that are routinely sold in
the ordinary course of business after rental, are transferred to inventory when rental ceases and they are held for sale.
Also, replaced the term “net selling price” with “fair value less costs to sell”.

IAS 18 Revenue. Replacement of the term ‘direct costs’ with ‘transaction costs’ as defined in IAS 30.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits. Revised the definition of ‘past service costs’, 'return on plan assets’ and 'short term’ and
‘other long-term’ employee benefits. Amendments to plans that result in a reduction in benefits related to future
services are accounted for as curtailment.

IAS 20 Accounting for Govemment Grants and Disclosures of Government Assistance. Loans granted in the future
with no or low interest rates will not be exempt from the requirement to impute interest. The difference between the
amount received and the discounted amount is accounted for as government grant, Alse, revised various terms used
to be consistent with other IFRS.

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs. The definition of borrowing costs is revised to consolidate the two types of items that are
considered components of ‘borrowing costs’ into one - the interest expense calcutated using the effective interest rate
method caiculated in accordance with 1AS 30.

IAS 27 Consclidated and Separate Financial Statements. When a parent entity accounts for a subsidiary at fair value
in accordance with tAS 39 in its separate financial statements, this treatment continues when the subsidiary is
subsequently classified as held for sale.

IAS 28 Investment in Associates. If an associate is accounted for at fair value in accordance with IAS 39, only the
requirement of 1AS 28 to disclose the nature and extent of any significant restrictions on the ability of the associate to
transfer funds to the entity in the form of cash or repayment of loans applies. In addition, an investment in an associate
is a single asset for the purpose of conducting the impairment test. Therefore, any impairment is not separately
allocated to the goodwill included in the investment balance.

IAS 29 Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies. Revised the reference to the exception to measure assets
and liabilities at historical cost, such that it notes property, plant and equipment as being an example, rather than
implying that it is a definitive list. Also, revised various terms used to be consistent with other IFRS.

IAS 31 Interest in Joint ventures: If a joint venture is accounted for at fair value, in accordance with IAS 39, only the
requirements of IAS 31 to disclose the commitments of the venturer and the joint venture, as well as summary financial
information about the assets, liabilities, income and expense will apply.

IAS 34 interim Financial Reporting. Eamings per share are disclosed in interim financial reports if an entity is within the
scope of [AS 33.

IAS 36 Impairment of Assets. When discounted cash flows are used to estimate ‘fair value less cost to sell’ additional
disclosure is required about the discount rate, consistent with disclosures required when the discounted cash flows are
used to estimate ‘value in use’.

IAS 38 Intangible Assets. Expenditure on advertising and promotional activities is recognised as an expense when the
entity either has the right to access the goods or has received the service. The reference to there being rarely, if ever,
persuasive evidence to support an amortisation method of intangible assets other than a straight-tine method has been
removed.

JAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. Changes in circumstances relating to derivatives are not
reclassifications and therefore may be either removed from, or included in, the ‘fair value through profit or loss’
classification after initial recognition. Removed the reference in IAS 39 to a ‘segment’ when determining whether an
instrument qualifies as a hedge. Require the use of the revised effective interest rate when remeasuring a debt
instrument on the cessation of fair value hedge accounting.

1AS 40 Investment Property. Revision of the scope such that property under construction or development for future use
as an investment property is classified as investment property. If fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment under construction will be measured at cost until such time as fair value can be determined or construction
is complete. Also, revised of the conditions for a voluntary change in accounting policy to be consistent with 1AS 8 and
clarified that the carrying amount of investment property held under lease is the valuation obtained increased by any
recognised liability.

IAS 41 Agrictiture. Removed the reference o the use of a pre-tax discount rate to determine fair value. Removed the
prohibition to take into account cash flows resulting from any additional transformations when estimating fair value.
Also, replaced the term ‘point-of-sale costs’ with ‘costs to sell'.

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements {(effective once adopted by the EU).

This interpretation applies to service concession operators and explains how to account for the obligations undertaken
and rights received in service concession arrangements. No member of the Group and the Company is an operator and,
therefore, this interpretation has no impact on the Group and the Company.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LT thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont'd)
2.1 Basis of preparation {cont’d)

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2008}.

This interpretation requires customer loyalty award credits to be accounted for as a separate component of the sales
transaction in which they are granted and therefore part of the fair value of the consideration received is allocated to the
award credit and deferred over the period that the award credit is fulfilled. The Group and the Company does not
maintain customer loyalty programmes, therefore, this interpretation will have no impact on the financial position or
performance of the Group and the Company.

IFRIC 14 IAS 19 — The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, Minimum Funding Requirements and their Inferaction {effective
for financial years beginning on or after 1 January 2009).

This interpretation specifies the conditions for recognising a net asset for a defined benefit pension plan. The Group and
the Company does not have defined benefit plans, therefore, the interpretation will have no impact on the financial
position or performance of the Group and the Company.

IFRIC 15 Agreement for the Construction of Real Estate {effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 January
2008 once adopted by the EU).

The interpretation clarifies when and how revenue and related expenses from the sale of a real estate unit shouid be
recognised if an agreement between a developer and a buyer is reached before the construction of the real estate is
completed. Furthermore, the interpretation provides guidance on how to determine whether an agreement is within the
scope of IAS 11 or IAS 18. The Group and the Company does not conduct such activity, therefore, this interpretation will
not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements.

IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net Investment in a Foreign Operation {(effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 October
2008 once adopted by the EU).

The interpretation provides guidance on the accounting for a hedge of a net investment in a foreign operation. IFRIC 16
will not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements because the Company does not have hedges of net
investments.

IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners (effective for financial years beginning on or after 1 July 2009 once
adopted by the EU).

The interpretation provides guidance on the appropriate accounting treatment when an entily distributes assets other
than cash as dividends to its shareholders. IFRIC 17 will not have an impact on the consolidated financial statements
because the Group and the Company does not distribute non-cash assets o owners.

IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers (effective for transfers of assets received on or after 1 July 2009 once
adopted by the EU).

The Interpretation provides guidance on accounting for agreements in which an entity receives from a customer an item
of property, plant and equipment that the entity must then use either to connect the customer to a network or to provide
the customer with ongoing access to a supply of goods or services (such as a supply of electricity, gas or water). As of
the date of release of these financial statements, the management of the Group and the Company tentatively maintains,
that above mentioned IFRIC will have no impact on the financial position or performance of the Group and the Company.

All the above mentioned new IFRSs and IFRICs and their amendments will be adopted on the date they become
effective and adopted by the EU.

2.2, Measurement and presentation currency

The amounts shown in these financial statements are measured and presented in the local currency of the Republic of
Lithuania, Litas (LTL).

Starting from 2 Fehruary 2002, Lithuanian Litas is pegged to EUR at the rate of 3.4528 Litas for 1 EUR, and the
exchange rates in relation to other currencies are set daily by the Bank of Lithuania.

2.3. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group include AB Lietuvos Dujos and it's subsidiary. The control is normally
evidenced when the Group owns, either directly or indirectly, more than 50 percent of the voting rights of a company’s
share capital and/or is able to govern the financial and cperating policies of an enterprise so as to benefit from its
activities.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles (cont’d)

23 Principles of consolidation {cont’'d)

The purchase method of accounting is used for acguired businesses. The Company accounts for the acquired
identifiable assets and liabilities of another company at their fair value at acquisition date. Difference between the
acquisition cost and the fair value of the net assets at the date of acquisition is considered to be goodwilt (hegative
goodwill). The goodwill is presented in the financial statements at cost, less impairment losses. Negative goodwill is
recognised as income in the income statement for the reporting period. In the consolidated financial statements goodwil!
related to the consolidated subsidiaries is presented under intangible assets caption.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acguired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to these of the Group's cash generating units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination, irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquirer are assigned to those units.

Companies acquired or sold during a year are included into the financial statements from the date of acquisition or until
the date of sale. Inter-company balances and transactions, including unrealised profits and losses, are eliminated on
consolidation.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared on the basis of the same accounting principles applied to similar
transactions and other events under similar circumstances. In separate financial statements of the Company investments
into subsidiaries and associated companies are accounted for applying the cost method.

24, Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Group and the Company are measured initially at cost. Intangible assets are recognised if it is
probable that future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the Group and the Company and the
cost of asset can be measured reliably.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessad to be either finite or indefinite.

After initial recognition, intangible assets with finite lives are measured at cost less accumulated amortisation and any
accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortised on a siraight-line basis over the best estimate of their
useful lives (4 years). The usefut lives, residual values and amortisation method are reviewed annually to ensure they are
consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of non-current intangible assets. Intangible assets
mainly consist of software and licenses used in main activities of the Group and the Company.

The Group and the Company do not have any intangible assets with infinite useful live.

2.5. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Such
cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment when that cost is incurred, if the recognition criteria
are met. Likewise, when a major inspection/maintenance is performed, its cost is recognised in the carrying amount of
the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs
are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

When assets are sold or retired, their cost, accumulated depreciation, impairment and increases are eliminated from the
accounting, and any gain or loss resulting from their disposal is included in the income statement.

Depreciation is computed on a straight-line basis over the following estimated useful lives:

Buildings 25 - 80 years
Transmission networks and related installations 30 - 65 years
Distribution networks and related installations 30 - 55 years
Machinery and equipment 5-18 years
Other buitdings and structures 18 years
Vehicles 6 -9 years
Other equipment, tools and devices 4 - 9vyears
Cther property, plant and equipment 6-9years

The useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed annually to ensure that they are consistent with
the expected pattern of economic benefits from items of property, plant and equipment,

Consfruction in progress is siated at cost. This includes the cost of construction, plant and equipment and other directly
attributable costs. Construction in progress is not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put into
operation.

The Group and the Company estimates the recoverable amount of an asset whenever there is an indication that the
asset may be impaired. An impairment loss is recognised in the income statement, whenever estimated.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principies (cont'd)
2.6, Financial assets

According to 1A% 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” the Group's and the Company’s financial
assets are classified as either financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity investments, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. All purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date. When financial assets are recognised initially, they are measured at fair value, plus (except
for the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) transaction costs.

Financial assets at fair vaiue through profit or loss

The category financial assets at fair value through profit or loss' includes financial assets classified as held for trading.
Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of selling in the near term. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in income statement.

Held-to-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
when the Company has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Investments that are intended to be held-to-
maturity are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognised in income statement when the investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Receivables are initially recorded at the fair value of the consideration given. Current receivables are
subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any allowance for impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in income statement when the loans and receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amaortisation process.

Allowance for doubtful receivables is evaluated when the indications leading to the impairment of accounts receivables
are noticed and the carrying amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts
and accounts receivable are derecognised (write-off) when they are assessed as uncollectible.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are those non-derivative financial assets that are designated as avajlable-for-sale or
are not classified in any of the three preceding categories. After initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are
measured at fair value with gains or losses (except impairment and gain or losses from foreign currencies exchange)
being recognised as a separate component of equity until the investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity is included in the
income statement.

2.7. Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised when:
- the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;
- the Group and the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to
pay them in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or
- the Group and the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the fransferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
(all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 Accounting principies (cont’d)
2.7. Derecognition of financial assets and Habilities (cont'd)

Financiat liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is reptaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or foss.

2.8. inventories

Inventories of the Group and the Company, consisting of natural gas in pipelines held for technical needs and natural gas
for sale at the year-end and other inventories, are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost of natural gas
is determined on the basis of weighted average cost, and the cost of the remaining inventories is determined on the
basis of the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method. Inventories that cannot be realised are written off.

2.9. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand, cash in transit and cash in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less and
that are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and in current bank
account as well as deposits in bank with original term of less than 3 months.

2.10. Borrowings
Borrowing costs are expensed as incurred.

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value of proceeds received, less the costs of transaction. They are
subsequently carried at amortised cost, the difference between net proceeds and redemption value being recognised in
the net profit or loss over the period of the borrowings.

The borrowings are classified as nen-current if the completion of a refinancing agreement before the balance sheet date
provides evidence that the substance of the liability at the balance sheet date was long term.

2.11. Operating leases

Leases where the lessor refains all the risk and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

The gains from discounts provided by the lessor are recognised as a decrease in lease expenses over the period of the
lease using the straight-line method.

If the result of sales and lease back transactions is aperating lease and it is obvious that the transaction has been carried
out at fair value, any profit or loss is recognised immediately. if the sales price is lower than the fair value, any profit or
foss is recognised immediately, except for the cases when the loss is compensated by lower than market prices for lease
payments in the future. The profit is then deferred and it is amortised in propertion to the lease payments over a period,
during which the assets are expected 1o be operated. If the sales price exceeds the fair value, a deferral is made for the
amount by which the fair value is exceeded and it is amortised over a period, during which the assets are expected to be
operated.
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
{all amounts are in LTL thousand unless otherwise stated)

Accounting principles {cont'd)
2.12. Grants (deferred revenue}

Grants received in the form of non-current assets or intended for the purchase, construction or other acquisition of
non-current assets are considered as asset-related grants. Assets received free of charge are also allocated to this
group of grants. The amount of the grants related to assets is recognised as income in the financial staterments over the
period of depreciation of the assets associated with this grant. In the income statement, other operating activities income
(net) line is increased by the amount of grant amortisation.

Payments received from customers for the connection to the Company's gas systems are accounted for as deferred
revenue and recognised as income over the expected useful life of the related capitalised assets.

Grants received as a compensation for the expenses or unearned income of the current or previous reporting period,
also, all the grants, which are not grants related to assets, are considered as grants related to income. The income-
related grants are recognised as used in parts to the extent of the expenses incurred during the reporting period or
unearned income t{o be compensated by that grant.

The balance of unutilised grants is shown under caption of "Grants (deferred revenue)” in the balance shest.
2.13. Income tax

The Group companies are taxed individually, irrespective the overall results of the Group. Income tax charge is based on
profit for the year and considers deferred taxation. Income tax is calculated based on the Lithuanian tax legislation.

The standard income tax rate in Lithuania was 15 % in 2008. In 2007 along with the 15 % income tax companies had to
pay an additional 3 % social tax calculated based on the income tax accounting principies. After the amendments of
Income Tax Law of Republic of Lithuania had come into force, 20 % income tax rate has been established for indefinite
period starting 1 January 2009.

Tax losses can be carried forward for indefinite period, except for the losses incurred as a result of disposal of securities
andfor derivative financial instruments. Such carrying forward is disrupted if the Company changes its activities due to
which these losses incurred except when the Company does not continue its activities due to reasons which do not
depend on Company itself. The losses from disposal of securities and/or derivative financial instruments can be carried
forward for 5 consecutive years and only be used to reduce the taxable income eamed from the transactions of the same
nature.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred taxes reflect the net tax effects of
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for income tax purposes, Deferred tax asset and liability is measured using the tax rates expected to apply
fo taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to reverse based on tax rates enacted
or substantially enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax asset have been recognised in the balance sheet to the extent the management believes it will be realised
in the foreseeable future, based on taxable profit forecasts. If it is believed that part of the deferred tax asset is not going
to be realised, this part of the deferred tax asset is not recognised in the financial statements.

On transition to IFRS, the Group and the Company treated revalued amounts of property, plant and equipment as a
deemed cost. As the tax base of the asset carried at deemed cost on transition to IFRS remains at original cost (or an
amount based on original cost), the pre-transition revaluation gave rise to a temporary difference associated with the
asset and deferred tax liability has been accounted for. If, after transition, the deferred tax is required to be remeasured
{(e.g. because of a change in tax rate, or a re-basing of the asset for tax purposes), the Group and the Company
accounts for it directly under the caption of retained earnings of the bajance sheets. Results of remeasurement for
deferred tax components other than plant, property or equipment revalued as a deemed cost, are accounted for in the
income statement.

2.14. Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group and the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. Sales are recognised net of VAT
and discounts.

Revenues from transmission, distribution and supply for industrial and commercial customers are recognised monthly
based on meter readings declared by the customer and checked by the Group and the Company (accrual basis).
Revenues from household customers are recognised menthly based on their meter readings declared by the customers
or based on the volume of gas supplied to customers but not yet declared, which approximates an accrual basis.
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AB LIETUVGS DUJOS
CONSOLIDATED AND PARENT COMPANY’S FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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Accounting principies (cont’d)

2.15. Foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions are accounted for at the exchange rates prevailing at the date of the transactions. Gains
and losses resuiting from the settlement of such transactions and from the {ranslation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies on the balance sheet date are recognised in the income statement. Such balances are
franslated at period-end exchange rates.

2,16. Segment information

Business segmenis

The Group and the Company has three main operating segments — natural gas transmission, distribution and supply -
and other activily business segment.

Financial information on business segments is presented in Note 3.

Geographical segments

All of the Group’s and the Company's assets {except a part of natural gas inventories — see Note 8) are located and
revenues are generated in the Republic of Lithuania, therefore geographical segments are not reported.

2.17. lmpairment of assets
Financial assets
Financial assets are reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date.

For financiat assets carried at amortised cost, whenever it is probable that the Group and the Company will not coltect all
amounts due according to the contractual terms of loans or receivables, an impairment or bad debt loss is recognised in
the income statement. The reversal of impairment losses previously recognised is recorded when the decrease in
impairment loss can be justified by an event occurring after the write-down. Such reversal is recorded in the income
statement in the same caption, where the impairment losses have been recognised. However, the increased carrying
ameunt is only recognised to the extent it does not exceed the amortised cost that would have been had the impairment
not been recognised.

Cther assets

Other assets of the Group and the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss is recognised in the income statement. Reversal of impairment losses
recognised in prior years is recorded when there is an indication that the impairment losses recognised for the asset no
longer exist or have decreased significantly. The reversal is accounted in the same caption of the income statement as
the impairment loss.

2.18. Use of estimates in the preparation of financial statements

The preparation of financial statemenis in conformity with International Financial Repoerting Standards requires
management of the Group and the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses and disclosure of contingencies. The significant areas of estimation used in the
preparation of these financial statemenis relate to depreciation (Note 2.5 and Note 5) and impairment evaluation of
deferred tax asset (Note 2.13 and Note 21), investments into subsidiaries — only the Company (Note 2.17), accounts
receivable (Note 2.6, Note 7 and Note 9) and inventories (Note 2.8 and Note 8). Future events may occur which may
cause the assumptions used in arriving at the estimates to change. The effect of any changes in estimates will be
recorded in the financial statements, when determinable. The management of the Group and the Company do not expect
any significant changes in accepted decisions and estimates related to the Group's and the Company’s activity for the
upcoming year.

2.19. Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements. They are disclosed in financial statements unless the
possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.

A contingent asset is not recognised in the financial statements but disclosed when an inflow or economic benefits is
probable.
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2 Accounting principles (cont'd}
2.20. Subsequent events
Post-balance sheet events that provide additional information about the Group’s and the Company's position at the
kalance sheet date (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post-balance sheet svents that are not
adjusting events are disclosed in the notes when material.

2.21. Offsetting and comparative figures

When preparing the financial statements, asseis and fiabilities, as well as revenue and expenses are not set off, except
the cases when certain IFRS specifically require such set-off,

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to correspond to the presentation of the current year. For the

years 2008 and 2007 development costs are added fo other intangible assets column in Note 4 as the amount was
immaterial.

3  Segment information

Transmission of natural gas means the transportation of natural gas through the transmission pipelines. The
transmission activity also includes transit of natural gas to the district of Kaliningrad of the Russian Federation.

Distribution of natural gas means the transportation of naturatl gas through the distribution gas pipelines.
Supply of natural gas means the natural gas sales to end users.
Other — other activity not related to main business.

Segment information for the years ended 2008 and 2007 is presented below:

Group

2008 Transmission Distribution Supply Other Total
Sales 134,103 137,794 1,278,872 4,597 1,555,366
Profit from operations 23,212 (8,748) 49,227 3,908 67,598
Assets 1,473,084 784,411 259,327 12,444 2,529,266
Liabilities 262 676 174,470 210,223 (408) 646,961
Other segment information

Acquisition of assets 57,045 85,751 375 111 123,282
Depreciation and amortisation 59,052 33,929 946 431 94 358
Average number of employees 347 1,270 154 50 1,821
2007

Sales 106,670 134,187 777,811 5,596 1,024,264
Profit from operations 5,740 12,914 99,468 6,495 124,647
Assets 1,474 509 758,404 213,809 12,234 2,458,956
Liabilities 234,877 140,581 153,072 639 529,169

Other segment information

Acquisition of assets 54,066 63,757 96 503 118,422
Depreciation and amortisation 60,687 32,121 990 406 94,504
Average number of employees 353 1,207 20C 53 1,813
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Segment information (cont’d)

Company

2008 Transmission Distribution Supply QOther Total
Sales 134,103 137,794 1,278,872 3,292 1,554,081
Profit from operations 23,212 (8,748) 49,227 3,944 67,635
Assets 1,473,084 784,411 259,327 11,654 2,528,476
Liabilities 262,676 174,470 210,223 62 647,431
Other segment information

Acquisition of assets 57,045 65,751 375 3 123,174
Depreciation and amortisation 59,052 33,929 948 183 94,110
Average number of employees 347 1,270 154 21 1,792
2007

Sales 106,670 134,187 777,811 4213 1,022,881
Profit from operations 5,740 12,914 99,498 6,394 124 546
Assets 1,474,509 758,404 213,809 11,204 2,457,926
Liabilities 234,877 140,581 183,072 571 529,101
Other segment information

Acquisition of assets 54,066 63,757 96 15 117,934
Depreciation and amortisation 60,987 32,121 990 171 94,269
Average number of employees 353 1,207 200 23 1,783
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Intangiblie asseis

Movement of intangible assets for the current period:

Group

Cost:

Balance as of 1 January 2007
Additions

Retirements

Balance as of 31 December 2007
Additions

Retirements

Balance as of 31 December 2008

Amortisation:

Balance as of 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

Retirements

Balance as of 31 December 2007
Charge for the year

Retirernents

Balance as of 31 December 2008

Net book value as of 31 December 2008
Net book value as of 31 December 2007

22

Other
Patents, intangible
licenses Software assets Total
1,510 4513 1,711 7,734
747 1,110 8 1,865
- (125) (36) {161}
2,257 5,498 1,683 9,438
946 702 14 1,662
(113} (131) {136) {380)
3,090 6,069 1,561 10,720
904 2,778 1,207 4,889
246 726 251 1,223
- (125) (36) (181)
1,150 3,379 1,422 5,951
396 833 155 1,384
(113) (131) (136) (380)
1,433 4,081 1,441 6,955
1,657 1,988 120 3,765
1,107 2,119 261 3,487




AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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Intangible assets (cont'd}

Other
Patents, intangible

Company licenses Software assets Total
Cost:
Balance as of 1 January 2007 1,510 4,510 1,711 7,731
Additions 747 1,105 8 1,860
Retirements - (125) (36) (161)
Balance as of 31 December 2007 2,257 5,490 1,683 9,430
Additions 946 678 14 1,638
Retirements (113} (130) (138) (379
Balance as of 31 December 2008 3,080 8,038 1,561 10,689
Armortisation:
Balance as of 1 January 2007 904 2776 1,207 4,887
Charge for the year 248 725 251 1,222
Retirements - {125) (36) (161)
Balance as of 31 December 2007 1,150 3,376 1,422 5,948
Charge for the year 396 831 155 1,382
Retirements (113 (130) (136) (379
Balance as of 31 December 2008 1,433 4,077 1,441 6,951
Net book value as of 31 December 2008 1,657 1,961 120 3,738
Net book value as of 31 December 2007 1,107 2,114 261 3,482

Amortisation expenses of intangible assets are included into operating expenses in the income statement.

Part of the non-current intangible assets of the Group and the Company with the acquisition value of LTL 4,744 thousand
as of 31 December 2008 (LTL 3,624 thousand as of 31 December 2007) was fully amortised, but stilf in use.
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5 Property, plant and equipment

Movement of property, plant and equipment for the current and prior periods:

Group

Cost:
Balance as of

1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications
Balance as of

31 December 2007
Additions
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications

Balance as of
31 DPecember 2008

Accumulated
depreciation:
Balance as of
1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements
Reclassificaticns
Balance as of
31 December 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications

Balance as of
31 December 2008

Impairment losses:
Balance as of

1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Reversal of impairment
Balance as of

31 December 2007
Reversal of impairment

Balance as of
31 December 2008

Net book value as of
31 PBecember 2008

Net book vatue as of
31 December 2007

Trans- Other Other
missicn Distribution Other Machi- equip-  property,
networks  networks and  buildings nery and ment, tools plant and Construc-
and related related and equip- Vehic- and equip- tion in
Land  Buiidings _installations installations structures  ment les devices ment  progress Fotal
103 92,656 1,421,759 867,775 10,350 100,768 27,908 85,110 7,604 23,274 2,437,203
- 2 - 484 - 853 4,404 2,140 1,280 107,604 116,657
B (1,766) (46) (573) (95) (455) (1,112) {6,832) (379) - {10,258}
80 4,876 26,790 52,687 984 16,257 - 4,087 159 (105,960} -
183 95,768 1,448,503 720,373 11,239 117,161 31,288 85,506 8,564 24,918 2,543,502
- 2 - 356 - 483 4,566 4,079 1,047 111,087 121,820
- (56) - {228) (15) {322) (3,902) (1,877) (361) (1} (8,762)
- 3,528 845 58,778 987 7,424 48 5,605 388 (77,403) -
183 89,242 1,449,148 779,279 12,211 124,746 32,000 93,312 9,638 58,601 2,658,360
- 6,928 88,978 44,102 1,362 21,790 17,990 53,086 4,058 - 238,204
- 2,937 45,696 22,594 783 10,956 2,382 7,058 875 - 93,281
- (154} (45} (426) (14} (422) {1,109) (5,765) (371) - (8,3086)
- - - 2 - (2) - - - - -
- 9,711 134,629 56,272 2131 32,322 15,263 54,379 4,562 - 323,269
- 3,051 46,137 23,230 588 7,925 3,042 7,905 1,096 - 92,974
- (37) - (165) {(14) (315} (3,801)  (1,869) (3386) - (6,637)
- 8 - - {8) - - - - - .
- 12,733 180,766 89,337 2,697 39,932 18404 60415 5,322 - 409,608
" 3,515 - - - - - - - 5 3,520
- - - - - - - 3 7 B 1C
- - - - - - : - - (4) (4)
- 3,515 - - - - - 3 7 1 3,526
. - - - - - - (3) (7) M (11}
- 3,515 - - - - - - - - 3,515
183 82,994 1,268,382 689,942 9,514 84,814 13,596 32,897 4,316 58,601 2,245,239
183 82,542 1,313,874 654,101 9,108 84,839 12,025 31123 3,985 24,917 2,216,707
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5  Property, plant and equipment {cont’d}

Company

Cost:
Balance as of

1 January 2007
Additions
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications
Balance as of

31 December 2007
Additions
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications

Balance as of
31 December 2008

Accumulated
depreciation:
Balance as of
1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications
Balance as of
31 December 2007
Charge for the year
Disposals and retirements
Reclassifications

Balance as of
31 December 2008

Impairment losses:
Balance as of

1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Reversal of impairment
Bailance as of

31 December 2007
Reversai of impairment

Balance as of
31 December 2068

Net book value as of
31 December 2008

Net book value as of
31 December 2007

Trans- Other
mission Distribution Other Machi- aquip- Other
networks  networks and buildings nery and ment, property, Construc-
and related related and struc- equip- Vehic- tools and plant and tion in
Land  Buildings installations _installations tures ment les  devices equipment progress Total
103 80,870 1,421,759 667,775 10,350 100,766 27,781 83,613 7,504 23,224 2,423,745
- 2 " 484 - 553 4,494 2,027 1,280 107,234 116,074
- (1.766) (46) (573) {95) (455) (1,112) (5,579) (379 - {(10,005)
80 4,513 26,790 52,687 984 16,297 - 4,087 159  (105,597) -
183 83,619 1,448,503 720,373 11,239 117,181 31,163 84,148 8,564 24,861 2,529,814
. 2 - 356 - 483 4,566 4,044 1,047 111,038 121,536
- (58) - (228} (15) (322) (3,202} (1,861) (361) nm (6,746)
- 3,528 545 58,778 987 7,424 48 5,805 388 {77.403) -
183 87,093 1,448,148 779,279 12,211 124,746 31,875 91,936 0,638 58,495 2,644,604
- 5,277 88,978 44,102 1,382 21,790 17,916 51,925 4,058 - 235,408
- 2,803 45,696 22,594 783 10,956 2,362 6,978 875 - 93,047
- (154) (45) {426) (14) (422) (1,109) (5,512) (371) - (8.053)
- - - 2 . (2) . . - - -
- 7,926 134,629 66,272 2,131 32,322 19,169 53,391 4,562 - 320,402
- 2,907 46,137 23,230 588 7,825 3,030 7,815 1,096 - 92,728
- (37) - (165) {(14) (315} (3,901) {1,854} (336) - (6,622}
- 8 - - {8) - - - - - R
- 10,804 180,766 89,337 2,697 39,932 18,298 59,352 5,322 - 406,508
- . . - - - - - . 5 5
~ - - - - - - 3 7 ~ 10
- - - - - o . - (4) @)
- - - - - - - 3 7 1 11
- - - - - - - {3) () () an
183 76,289 1,268,382 689,942 9,514 84,814 13,577 32,584 4,316 58,495 2,238,096
183 75,693 1,313,874 654,101 9,108 84,839 11,994 30,754 3,895 24,860 2,209,401
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Property, plant and equipment {cont’d)

The depreciation of the Group’s and the Company's properly, plant and equipment for 2008 amounts to
LTL 92,974 thousand and LTL 92,728 thousand, respectively. The amounts of LTL 92,951 thousand and
LTL 92,705 thousand are included into operating expenses, the remaining amounts are included into other operating
activities income (net) in the Group's and the Company's income statements.

The depreciation of the Group's and the Company's property, plant and equipment for 2007 amounts to
LTL 93,281 thousand and LTL 93,047 thousand, respectively. The amounts of LTL 93,259 thousand and
LTL 93,025 thousand are included intc operating expenses, the remaining amounts are included into other operating
activities income (net) in the Group’s and the Company’s income statements.

Property, plant and equipment of the Group and the Company with the acquisition cost of LTL 44,859 thousand and
ETL 44,146 thousand, respectively, were fully depreciated as of 31 December 2008 (LTL 47,357 thousand and
L.TL 46,611 thousand as of 31 December 2007, respectively), but were stil in use.

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Group and the Company had no property, plant and equipment, acquired
according to financial lease agreements.

Major objects of construction in progress of the Group and the Company as of 31 December 2008 were as follows:

Object Group Company

Construction of MRS in Jaunitinai, Sirvintos district 31,781 31,781
Construction of transmission pipeline Jurbarkas - Silaié branch 3,354 3,354
Construction of transmission pipeline Silale - Klaipeda branch 3,987 3,087
Other (including UAB Palangos Perlas) 19,479 19,373
Net book value as of 31 December 2008 58,601 58,495

Investments into subsidiaries

As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Company's investment info subsidiaries consisted of the investment into
UAB Palangos Perlas and amounted to LTL 10,737 thousand.

Non-current accounts receivable

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
AB Panevézio Stiklas debt 6,373 6,373 8,373 8,373
Other non-current accouts receivable 65 75 65 75
6,438 8,448 8,438 6,448
Less: allowance for non-current accounts receivable (6,373) (6,373) {6,373 (6,373)
65 75 65 75

Receivable from AB PanevéZio stiklas is related {o the mentioned entity debt for the supply of natural gas for the period
2000 - 2002. Due fo solvency problems debts restructuring agreement was signed with AB Panevézio Stiklas creditors
on 30 August 2002, according to it the debt to the Company in the amount of LTL 6,373 thousand should be repaid
during the years 2013 —- 2024.
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inventories

Raw materials, spare parts and other inventories
Goods for resale {including natural gas)
Inventories, gross

Less: allowance for inventories

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
3,058 2,367 3,057 2,366
55,182 106,904 55,168 106,889
58,240 109,271 58,225 109,255
(66) (207} (66) (207)
58,174 109,064 58,159 109,048

As of 31 December 2008 the Group’s and the Company’s balances of the goods for resale significantly decreased due to
lower quantity of natural gas stored in Latvia gas storage at the year end.

The cost of inventories accounted for at net realisable value amounted to LTL 1,160 thousand as of 31 December 2008

(LTL 1,422 thousand as of 31 December 2007). Changes in the allowance for inventories in 2008 and 2007 were
included into operating expenses.

Accounts receivable

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Receivables for natural gas, transmission and distribution of
natural gas from non-household customers 130,899 88,759 130,910 88,759
Receivables for natural gas, transmission and distribution of
natural gas from household customers 4,500 3,555 4 500 3,555
Other trade receivables 1,764 807 1,757 809
137,163 93,121 137,167 93,123
Prepaid income tax 1.862 - 1.844 “
Other accounts receivable 498 3,216 497 3,159
139,513 98,337 139,508 96,282
Less: allowance for accounts receivable {6,301) (4,758) (6,301 (4.758)
133,212 91,579 133,207 91,524

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally due in 30 days terms.

As of 31 December 2008 trade and other receivables with the nominal value of LTL 1,386 thousand {as of 31 December
2007 - LTL 4,338 thousand) were fully provided for.

As of 31 December 2008 the Group's and the Company's trade receivables increased significantly due to the increase in
natural gas sales price for customers.

Movements in the allowance for impairment of the Group’s and the Company's receivables were as follows:

Individually  Collectively
impaired impaired Total
Baiance as of 31 December 2006 4,731 2,151 6,882
Charge for the year 320 404 724
Utilised - (496) (498)
Unused amounts reversed {1,492) (860) (2,352)
Balance as of 31 Becember 2007 3,559 1,199 4,758
Charge for the year 4,951 781 5,732
Utilised - (56) (56)
Unused amounts reversed (3,605) (528) (4,133)
Balance as of 31 December 2008 4,905 1,396 6,301

Changes in allowance for accounts receivable in 2008 and 2007 were included into operating expenses.
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Accounts receivable {cont'd)

The ageing analysis of the Group's trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Receivahles past due but not impaired

Receivables Less More
neither past due than 30 30-90 90 -180 180 — than 360
nor impaired days days days 360 days days Total
2007 82,825 5,062 968 121 63 - 89,028
2008 113,473 14,090 3,491 191 111 - 131,366

The ageing analysis of the Company’s trade and other receivables as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 is as follows:

Receivables past due but not impaired

Receivables Less More
neither past due than 30 30-90 90 - 180 180 — than 360
nor impaired days days days 360 days days Total
2007 82,829 5,060 958 121 63 - 89,031
2008 113,472 14,090 3,487 190 111 - 131,350

Other current assets

The Group’s other current assets consists of short term deposits in the amount of LTL 4,099 thousand as of
31 December 2008 (LTL 3,722 thousand as of 31 December 2007). Weighted average annual interest rate of the term
deposits was 6.42 % as of 31 December 2008 (4.91 % as of 31 December 2007). The maturity of term deposits is 3 -6
months period.

Cash and cash equivalents

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Cash at bank, in transit and on hand 3,984 3,952 3,853 3,695
Frozen funds 6,137 6,137 6,137 6,137
Deposits with the term of less than three months 80,242 29,642 80,142 29,642
90,363 39,731 90,132 39,474
Less: impairment {6,137} (6,137) (6,137) (6,137)
84,226 33,594 83,995 33,337

Frozen funds mostly consist of the Group's and the Company's cash deposited at the bank AB Litimpeks Bankas.
The bank went bankrupt in 1999 and it is now administrated by UAB Valeksa. A 100 % allowance is recorded for this
amount,

The original term of ail deposits is less than three months, the weighted average annual interest rate as of 31 December
2008 was 2.54 % (3.7 % as of 31 December 2007).

Cash at banks is invested into short-term deposits, the interest rate depending on the time limit may be fixed or floating.
QOvernight deposits are with floating interest rate, which depends on daily published interbank interest rates. The other
deposits with the term less than three months are with fixed inferest rate. The fair value of cash and current deposits of
the Group and the Company as of 31 Dacember 2008 was LTL 84,226 thousand and LTL 83,9985 thousand, respectively
(L.TL. 33,594 thousand and LTL 33,337 thousand as of 31 December 2007).
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AB LIETUVOS DUJOS
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008
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Share capital

There were no changes in share capital during 2008 and 2007, and as of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the share capital
of the Company amounted fo LTL 469,068 thousand.

Reserves

Legal reserve

A legal reserve is a compulsory reserve under legislation of the Republic of Lithuania. Annual transfers of not less than
5% of net profit are compulsory until the reserve reaches 109% of the share capital. At least an amount of
LTL 3,197 thousand of the Company's net 2008 profit must be allocated for a transfer to the legal reserve for 2008. This
amount may change depending on the final decision of the shareholders of the Company to be made after the issue of
these financial statements.

Other reserves

The Group and the Company also forms reserves for corporate business deveiopment.

Profit distribution

The Company did not have a draft proposal of profit distribution for 2008 on the date of issue of these financial
statements.

Grants (deferred revenue)

Group and Company 2008 2007
Deferred Deferred
revenue Grants Total revenue Grants Total

Balance at the beginning of the

period 75,436 61,795 137,231 50,975 60,126 111,101
Additions per year 28,831 2,010 30,841 25,529 4,004 29,623
Grants receivable for compensation

of expenses - - - - 227 227
Amortisation per year (1,574} (2,044) (3,618 (1,068) (2,046) (3,114)
Grants used for compensation of

expenses - (242) (242) - (606) (6086)
Balance at the end of the period 102,603 61,519 164,212 75,436 51,795 137,231

Increase in grants (deferred revenue) in 2008 is mainly influenced by the payments received for new connections of
customers to the Group's and the Company's naturai gas system.

Grants also include the corresponding fair value of property, plant and equipment received free of charge and charged to
the income statement in portions on a straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated useful life.

Borrowings
Group Company
As of 31 As of 31 As of 31 As of 31
December December December December
2008 2007 2008 2007
Nen-current borrowings
Borrowings from Lithuanian credit institutions 8,576 10,720 8,576 10,720
Current borrowings
Current portion of non-current borrowings 2,144 10,839 2,144 10,839
10,720 21,559 10,720 21,669
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15 Borrowings {cont'd)

16

The terms of repayment of non-current borrowings are as follows:

As of 31 December 2008 As of 31 December 2007

Floating Floating
Fixed interest interest Fixed interest interest bearing

hearing loans bearing ioans bearing loans loans

2008 - - 9,644 1,195
2009 2,144 - 2,144 -
2010 2,144 - 2,144 -
2011 2,144 - 2,144 -
2012 2,144 - 2,144 -
2013 2,144 - 2,144 -
10,720 - 20,364 1,195

Actual interest rates are close to effective interest rates. As of 31 December 2008 the weighted average annual interest
rate of borrowings outstanding was 5.65 % (5.05 % as of 31 December 2007). In 2008 and 2007 the period of repricing
floating interest rates on borrowings was 6 months.

Borrowings at the end of the year in national and foreign currencies expressed in LTL were as follows:

Group Company
Borrowings denominated in: 2008 2007 2008 2007
EUR 10,720 20,364 10,720 20,384
LTL - 1,195 - 1,195
10,720 21,559 10,720 21,659

None of the Company's loans are secured by pledging assets owned by the Company or by third parties guarantees.

As of 31 December 2008 the Group and the Company had available LTL 6,900 thousand (LTL 20,000 thousand as of
31 December 2007) of unutilized credit limit facility in respect of which all conditions precedent had been met.

Trade payables

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Suppliers of natural gas 177,729 116,598 177,729 116,598
Other 3,222 2,917 3,212 2,800
180,951 118,515 180,941 119,498

As of 31 December 2008 the Group’s and the Company’s trade payables significantly increased due to the significant
increase in import price of natural gas.

Terms and conditions of the above financial liabilities:
- Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled on 20 days terms.

Interest payable accounted under Other current liabilities caption {other than trade payables) in the Groups and

the Company’s balance sheet is settled as follows:
- Interest payable is normally seitled quarterly or semi-annually throughout the financial year.
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18

19

20

Cost of sales

In 2008 the major part of the Group’s and the Company's cost of sales consists of the cost of natural gas — 99.96 % and
99.98 %, respectively {99.90 % and 99.93 %, respectively, in 2007).

Operating expenses
Group Company

2008 2007 2008 2007
Depreciation and amortisation 84,335 94 482 94,087 94 247
Salaries and social security 87,747 75,358 87,122 74,758
Repair and maintenance expenses 29,727 25,524 29,619 25,419
Taxes other than income tax 11,319 10,861 11,245 10,801
Fuel 2,892 2,413 2,880 2,403
Communication services 1,872 1,641 1,860 1,626
Meters 1,608 1,682 1,608 1,682
impairment of assets 982 (1,948) 982 (1,948)
Other 22,254 21,315 22,213 21,280

252,738 231,328 251,616 230,268

Other operating activities income (net}

In 2008 the major part of the Group's and the Company's other operating activities income consists of grants (including
deferred revenues) amortisation amounting to LTL 3,618 thousand, in 2007 it included also amortisation of grants
amounting to LTL 3,114 thousand and the gain on properly, plant and equipment disposals for the amount of
LTL 2,144 thousand.

Financial and investing activities
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007

Interest income on deposits 5,009 2,688 4,868 2,533
Other income from financial and investing activities 1,438 346 1,438 346
Total income from financial and investing activities 6,537 3,034 6,306 2,879
Interest expenses on borrowings (862) {2,346) (862) (2,346)
Other expenses from financial and investing activities (1) (3) (1) {3}
Total expenses from financial and investing activities (863) (2,349) {863) (2,349)
Gain from financial and investing activities, net 5,674 685 5,443 530
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Income tax
Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Income tax:
income for the year before income tax according to IFRS 73,273 125,332 73,078 125,076
Changes in temporary differences 52,837 50,513 52,893 50,574
Permanent differences 921 2,299 919 2,299
Taxable income for the year 127,031 178,144 126,890 177,849
Current income tax 19,055 32,065 19,035 32,031
Prior periods’ income tax adjustment (214) (6,465)* (214) (6,465)"
Change in deferred income tax 51,914 (4,246) 52,037 (4,256)
impact on change in income tax rate recorded directly under the
caption of retained earnings in the balance shest™ 81,717} - (81,717) -
Income tax expense charged to the income statement 9,038 21,354 9,141 21,310
Deferred tax assef:
Impairment losses on property, plant and eguipment, accounts
receivable and inventories 6,224 3,884 5,582 3,480
Deferred revenue from connection fees 2,877 2,201 2877 2,201
Other - 604 - 589
Deferred tax asset before valuation aliowance 9,101 6,689 8,459 6,280
Less: valuation allowance (4,559) (4,084) (4,555) (4,079)
Less: deferred tax asset netted with deferred tax liability (4,542} (2,201) (3,904) (2,201
Deferred tax asset, net - 404*** - -
Deferred tax liability:
Revaluation of property, plant and equipment (246,977) {193,126 (246,866)  (193,126)
Deferred tax liability, net (242,453)  {190,925) (242,962)  (190,925)

* These amounts include the income tax and deferred tax recalculated for the years 2005 and 2008, recognised in the
financial statements for the year 2007, when the State Tax Inspectorate of the Ministry of Finance Ministry recegnised
that the revenue from connection to the Company's gas system of new users on income tax purposes may be
recognised during the capitalised assets useful lives.

** Due to application of 20 % income tax rate starting from 1 January 2009, the Group and the Company performed the
recalcutation of deferred income tax assets and liabilities. Based on the Group’s and the Company’s choice the effect of
change in income tax rate for the deferred income tax liability component was recognised under the retained earnings
(deficit) caption in the balance sheet.

*** Represents deferred income tax asset from the revaluation of the property, plant and equipment of the subsidiary, the
realisation term of which was different from the Company’s deferred tax liability realisation terms. As the Company and
the subsidiary are taxed individually this deferred tax asset was not set off against the remaining Group’s deferred tax
liability.

Valuation allowance was made for part of the deferred tax asset that, in the opinion of the management, is not likely to be
realised in the foreseeable future. Deferred income tax asset and deferred income tax liability are netted off in the
balance sheet of the Company, as they both are related to the same tax authority. In the Group’s balance sheet the
deferred tax asset and deferred tax liability of the Company and it's subsidiary is netted to the extent they are realised
simultaneously.
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23

24

Income tax {cont’d)

While assessing deferred income tax asset and liability components in 2008 the Group and the Company has used 20 %
income tax rate. While assessing deferred income tax asset and liability components in 2007 the Group and the
Company has used income tax rate of 15 %, as future change of tax rate was unknown as of the release date of financial
statements for the year 2007.

The reported amount of income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the amount of income tax expense that
would result from applying the statutory income tax rate of 15 % and 20 % to pre-tax income:

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Profit before tax 73,273 125,332 73,078 125,076
Tax {expense) at the applicable standard tax rate (10,991) (22,580) (16,962) (22,514)
Non-deductible items 138 (414) 138 (414)
Change in deferred tax asset realisation allowance 475 2,392 476 2,395
Impact of changes in income tax rates 1,554 223 1,421 218
Effect of prior periods income tax adjustment (214) (995) (214) (995)
Income tax {expense) (9.038) (21,354) (9,141 {21,310

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share reflect the Group's and the Company’s net income, divided by the weighted average number of
shares. There are no diluting instruments, therefore basic and diluted earnings per share are equal. Calculations of the
basic earnings per share are presented below:

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Net profit attributable to the shareholders (in LTL thousand) 64,235 103,978 63,937 103,766
Weighted average number of shares in thousand 468,068 469,068 469,068 469,068
Basic earnings per share {in LTL) 0.14 0.22 0.14 0.22

As there were no changes in the share capital of the Company during 2008 and 2007, therefore the weighted average
number of shares equals to the total number of shares.

Dividends declared

2008 2007
Approved dividends (in LTL thousand)* 50,000 30,000
Number of shares at the date when dividends were declared (in thousand) 469,068 469,068
Approved dividends per share (LTL) 0.11 0.06

* In the year when the dividends are approved.

Cash generated from investing activities
When calculating cash flows from investing activities, the change in accounts payable for non-current assets of

the Group and the Company amounting to LTL 421 thousand (in 2007 LTl 1,127 thousand and LTL 1,134 thousand,
respectively), was taken into account.
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Capital commitments

In accordance with the Natural Gas Law of the Republic of Lithuania and pursuant to the procedure approved by the
order No. 201 of the Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania dated 20 June 2001 (hereinafter the Order), in
2002 the Group and the Company started the process of buying out natural gas supply systems of common use owned
by other legal entities and natural persons. During 2002 - 2008 the Group and the Company has hought out 313 km
pipelines for the total value of LTL 5,021 thousand. in accordance with the regulation of the Order, the owners of the
natural gas common use systems could make the requests till 31 December 2007. As of 31 December 2008 the Group
and the Company has unsatisfied requests to buy out 115 km pipelines with the estimated price of approximately
LTL 1 million according to the Group’s and the Company's calculation.

As of 31 December 2008, the Group and the Company had the contracts for non-current assets acquisition, which are
not recognised in these financial statements and amount to L.TL 78,225 thousand.

Financial assets and liabilities and risk management
Liquidity risk

The Group’s and the Company’s policy is to maintain sufficient amount of cash and cash equivalents or have available
funding through an adequate amount of committed overdraft and loans to meet their commitments at a given date.
Liquidity risk is managed by constantly forecasting the current and non-current cash flows of the Group and the
Company.

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financiai liabilities as of 31 December 2008 based on
contractual undiscounted payments (scheduled payments including interest).

Less than 3to 12 1to5 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total

interest bearing loans and

borrowings - 3,362 8,353 10,150 2,235 24,100
Other current liabilities - 1,802 - - - 1,802
Trade payahbles - 119,515 - - - 119,515
Balance as of

31 December 2007 - 124,679 8,353 10,150 2,235 145,417
Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - - 2,719 9,666 - 12,385
Other current liabilities - 593 - - - 583
Trade payables - 180,899 52 - - 180,951
Balance as of

31 December 2008 - 181,492 2,771 9,666 - 193,929

The tabie below summarises the maturity profile of the Company’s financiat liabilities as of 31 December 2008 based on
contractual undiscounted paymenis (scheduled payments including interests).

Less than 3to 12 1t05 More than
On demand 3 months months years 5 years Total

Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - 3,362 8,353 10,150 2,235 24100
Other current liabilities - 1,802 - - - 1,802
Trade payables “ 119,498 - - - 119,458
Balance as of

31 December 2007 - 124,662 8,353 10,150 2,235 145,400
Interest bearing loans and

borrowings - - 2,719 9,665 - 12,385
Other current liabilities - 593 - - - 593
Trade payables - 180,889 52 - - 180,941
Balance as of

31 December 2008 . 181,482 2,771 9,666 - 193,919
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28 Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont’d}
Credit risk

The Group's and the Company's management befieves that the maximum credit risk is equal to the trade receivables,
cash and deposits less impairment losses recognised at the balance sheet date. As the Group and the Company are
working with big number of costumers, they do not face a significant credit concentration risk. Credit risk is managed
through regular menitoring procedures (individual debtors’ supervision, monitoring and analysis of major customers,
seeking to anticipate the potential solvency problems in the future and other) and the use of appropriate credit conditions.
Every month there are valued debts of the individual customers and their groups and in accordance with procedures of
the Company there is accepted the decision for the formation of allowance for accounts receivable.

The risk of the keeping the Group's and the Company's unused funds in bank accounts or keeping as current deposits is
not significant, because only the banks with the highest credit ratings are selected as the partners.

The Group and the Company doas not guarantee obligations of other parties.

Foreign currency risk

in order to manage foreign currency risk, the purchases and sales transactions of the Group and the Company are
mainly denominated in LTL and EUR., fitas is pegged to the euro, therefore, the foreign currency risk is not significant.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local and foreign currencies as of 31 December 2008 were as foliows
(stated in LTL):

Group Company Group Company
Assets Liabilities
LTL 215,328 215217 41,277 41,227
EUR 2,274 2,050 188,501 188,501
Total 221,602 217,267 229,778 229,728

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in local and foreign currencies as of 31 December 2007 were as foliows
(stated in LTL):

Group Company Group Company
Assets Liabilities
1YL 128,839 124,927 65,079 65,029
EUR 131 9 120,764 120,764
Total 128,870 124,936 185,843 185,793

Interest rate risk

As of 31 December 2008 all the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings are with fixed interest rates. The Group and the
Company does not use any financial instruments designated to manage the fluctuation in interest rates.

During the year 2008 the Company has fully repaid the borrowing with the floating interest rate and this amount was not
significant.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables
held constant, of the Group’s and the Company’s profit before tax (through the impact on floating rate borrowings). There
is no impact on the Group's and the Company’s equity, other than current year profit impact.

The sensitivity analysis was performed only for the Group’s and the Company’s borrowings with a floating interest rate
held as of 31 Becember 2007.

Increase/decrease Effect on profit
in basis points before tax
2007
LTL +300 (36)
LTL -300 36
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Financial assets and liabilities and risk management (cont’d)

Gas import price fluctuation risk

Natural gas import price depends on oil and gasoline prices in international market, the USD and EUR ratic fixed by the
European Central Bank and actual natural gas calorific value. This risk is managed respectively: for non-household
customers - by setting the gas price depending on the same variable component values, for household customers ~
through the regulated price-setting mechanism.

Fair value of financial instruments

The Group’s and the Company's principal financial instruments not carried at fair value are trade and other receivables,
investment into subsidiary (in the Company), trade and other payables, long-term and shori-term borrowings.

Fair value is defined as the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable willing parties
in an arm's length transaction, and these parties intend to purchase (sell) assets or net off the liabilities. Fair vailues are
obtained from gucted market prices, discounted cash flow models and option pricing models as appropriate.

The following methods and assumptions are used to estimate the fair vaiue of each class of financial instruments:
{a) The carrying amount of current trade and other accounts receivable, investments into subsidiary (in
the Company}, current accounts payable and short-term borrowings approximates fair value;
{b) The fair value of non-current borrowings is based on the quoted market price for the same or similar issues ar on
the current rates available for borrowings with the same maturity profile. The fair value of non-current borrowings
with variable and fixed interest rates approximates their carrying amounts.

Commitments and confingencies

Legal disputes

1. On 29 December 2008 the National Controi Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter the Commission) adopted
the Resolution No ©03-219 “On the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Dujos Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution
Prices and Natural Gas Prices for Household Customers” (hereinafter the Resolution), with which the Commission
unilaterally set natural gas transmission and distribution prices and natural gas prices for household customers to be
applied from 1 January 2009. On 28 January 2009 AB Lietuvos Dujos applied to Vilnius County Administrative Court for
annuiment off the above Resolution of the Commission.

2. AB Lietuvos Dujos is taking part as third interested party in the case in Vilnius County Administrative Court according
to the complaint of 29 December 2008 of the National Gas, Electricity and Heat Consumer Protection League regarding
the Commission’s Resolution No 03-218 "On the Public Limited Company Lietuvos Dujos' Natural Gas Transmission
and Distribution Prices and Natural Gas Prices for Household Customers®.

3. AB Lietuvos Dujos has also ledged complaints against previous activities of the Commission. These complaints are
currently in progress. AB Lietuvos Dujos lodged a complaint to Vilnius County Administrative Court against the
Commission's Resolution No 03-18 of 29 April 2005 “On AB Lietuvos Dujos' Price Caps of Naturat Gas Transmission
and Distribution and Price Caps of Naturat Gas for the Regulated Customers”, the Commission’s Resolution No 03-30 of
30 May 2005 “On AB Lietuvos Dujos' Prices of Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution and Prices of Natural Gas for
Regulated Customers”, the Commission’s Resolution No 03-36 of 30 June 2005 "On AB Lietuvos Dujos’ Prices of
Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution and Prices of Natural Gas for Regulated Customers”, and the Commission’s
Resolution No 03-20 of 27 Aprit 2006 “On the Adjustment of AB Lietuvos Dujos' Price Caps of Natural Gas
Transmission and Distribution and Price Caps of Natural Gas for Regulated Customers”. With the decision of 13 March
2007 Vilnius County Administrative Court rejected the complaint of AB Lietuvos Dujos. AB Lietuvos Dujos took an appeal
to the Supreme Administrative Court of Lithuania (hereinafter SACL). In its judgement passed on 27 December 2007,
SACL proposed that the case should be heard by an extended judicial collegium.

The outcome of above mentioned claims is uncertain and can not be estimated with reasonable efforts. In addition,
based on the management estimates, there is no need to accrue any amounts for any potential future losses in relation
ta the above — mentioned cases. As at the time the Company is applying tariffs, which have been approved by the
Commission.
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28 Related party transactions

The parties are considered related when one party has the possibility to control the other one or have significant
influence over the other party in making financiat and operating decisions.

The related parties of the Group and the Company, transaction amounts and debts as of 31 December 2608 and 2007

were as follows:

-~ E.ON Ruhrgas International AG (one of the major shareholders of the Company);
- QAQ Gazprom (one of the major shareholders of the Company),
- State Property Fund {one of the major sharehoiders of the Company);

~  UAB Palangos Perlas (subsidiary of the Company);
— A8 Latvijas Gaze {the same shareholders},
~  E.ON IS GmbH (same ultimate shareholder).

Accounts Accounts

2008 Purchases Sales receivable payable
OAO Gazprom 1,190,474 10,017 1,130 177,729
UAB Palangos Perlas 95 53 11 -
AS Latvijas Gaze 4,585 - - 12
E.ON i8S GmbH 198 - - 40
1,195,352 10,070 1,141 177,781

Accounts Accounts

2007 Purchases Sales receivable payable
QAQO Gazprom 746,676 10,218 - 100,393
UAB Palangos Perlas 106 36 7 -
AS Latvijas Gaze 3,782 - - 7
750,564 10,254 7 100,400

Dividends to the shareholders have been paid in 2008 and 2007.

QOutstanding balances at the year end are unsecured, interest free and settlement occurs in cash in 20 - 30 days term.
There have been no guarantees provided or received for any related party receivable or payable and no allowance has

been made for the amounts owed by related parties.

Payments for management

The Group's and the Company’s payments to the administration management and the Board members amounted to
LTl 2,416 thousand and LTL 2,345 thousand in 2008, respectively (L.Tl. 1,822 thousand and LTL 1,757 thousand in
2007, respectively}, The bonuses paid for the Company's Board members amounted to LTL 79 thousand in 2008 (nil in
2007). in 2008 and 2007 the management of the Group and the Company did not receive any loans, guarantees; no

other payments or property transfers were made or accrued.
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28 Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group's and the Company’s capital management are to ensure that the Group and the
Company complies with externally imposed capital requirements and that the Group and the Company maintains healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and to maximise shareholders’ value,

The Group and the Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in the light of changes in
economics conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group
and the Company may issue new shares, adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes of capital management during the years end
31 December 2008 and 2007.

The Group and the Company is abliged to upkeep its equity ratio not less than 50 % of its share capital, as imposed by
the Law on Companies of Republic of Lithuania. There were no other externally imposed capital requirements on
the Group and the Company. As of 31 December 2008 and 2007 the Group and the Company has been in compliance
with this requirement.

The Group and the Company monitors capital using debt to equity ratio. Capital includes ordinary shares, reserves,
retained earnings attributable to the equity holders of the parent. There is no specific debt to equity ratio target set out by
the Group's and the Company's management, however current ratios presented below are freated as quite good
performance indicators.

Group Company
2008 2007 2008 2007
Non-current liabilities (including deferred tax and grants) 415,223 338,876 415,750 338,876
Current liabilities 231,738 190,293 231,681 190,225
Liabilities 646,961 529,169 647,431 529,101
Equity 1,882,305 1,929,787 1,881,045 1,928,825
Pebt to equity ratio 34.37 % 27.42 % 34.42 % 27.43 %
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REPORTING PERIOD FOR WHICH THE REPORT WAS PREPARED

The year 2008.

MAIN DATA ABOUT THE COMPANY

Name of the Issuer: Lietuvos Dujos AB (hereinafter referred to as “the
Company” or “LD”)

Legal & organizational form: joint-stock company

Date and place of registration: 23 November 1990, Register of Legal Persons of
the Repubilic of Lithuania

Company code: 120059523

Administrator of Register of Legal

Persons: State Enterprise Centre of Registers

Authorized capital: LTL 469,068,254

Registered office: Aguony str. 24, LT-03212 Vilnius, Lithuania

Telephone number: +370 5 2360210

Fax number: +370 5 2360200

E-mail address: l[d@lietuvosdujos.It

Website: www.dujos.It

MAJOR DEVELOPMENTS OF THE REPORTING PERIOD

- From 1 January 2008, the Company’s shares are admitted to the Main List of the stock
exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius.

- On 1 January 2008, new natural gas tariffs for the Company’s customers came into effect.
The tariff increase was determined by the rise in the natural gas imports price and the flaws
of the regulatory regime of the Natural Gas Sector.

- From 1 January 2008, the Company amended its Organization Chart in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the European Union legislation regarding the functional separation of
the Company’s gas transmission, distribution and supply business activities.

- On 16 April 2008, a regular general meeting of shareholders of the Company took place at
which the shareholders decided for the results achieved in the Financial Year 2007 to pay out
dividends in amount of LTL 50 million, i.e. LTL 0.11 per share.

- On 16 April 2008, granting their respective resignation requests, Stephan Kamphues and Dr
Eike Benke were recalled from the membership of the Board of Directors and new members
Dr Achim Saul and Marcus A. Soehrich were elected instead. Dr Achim Saul was elected
Chairman of the Board of Directors.

- On 16 June 2008, the General Manager of the Company Viktoras ValentukeviCius was
elected President of the Lithuanian Gas Association for a four-year term.

- In July, the Company launched a brand-new service for its household customers “My Gas
Account”. At the LD website www.dujos.It the Company’s household customers may access
data on their current payment status (debts or overpayments) for the natural gas consumed
and read relevant info notices.

- September marked the presentation of a newly released historic publication “The Guardians
of the Sky-Blue Flame”. It is a unique book in which the history of the Natural Gas Sector is
illustrated not merely through the presentation of plain facts and documents, but also through
the interviews with both former and current Natural Gas Sector employees.
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- On 18 September 2008, a presentation of the completed Project “Developing a Greenfield
Investment Infrastructure in Panevézys District” was held in Ramygala (Panevézys District).
LD contributed to the Project implementation by laying a 9.3-km gas pipeline to the
Greenfield Investment Zone.

- On 19 September 2008, Klaipéda marked the 40™ anniversary of the introduction of natural
gas supplies to this town. To celebrate the anniversary, a number of various events were
arranged for the residents and guests of the town of Klaipéda: the planting of pine-trees at
the Neringa National Park, the Day of Donor Grants-in-aid, the Children’s Drawing
Competition for pupils of elementary schools, the Nautical Mile Race for older pupils, the
Concert for the Residents of Klaipéda.

- November marked the introduction of natural gas supplies to Rietavas. The project cost LTL
4.2 million. The Project was implemented in 2007-2008.

- On 24 November 2008, the Board of Directors of LD approved the new natural gas
transmission and distribution service tariffs and natural gas tariffs for the household
customers applicable in 2009.

- With a view to improving the LD customer services, on 1 December 2008, a Call Centre was
opened at the Company, supplying information to customers of the Vilnius District. From 1
July 2009, the general Call Centre number 1894 will cover all the natural gas customers of
entire Lithuania, providing natural gas-related information.

- On 29 December 2008, the National Control Commission for Prices and Energy (hereinafter
referred to as “the NCCPE”) unilaterally set the Company’s natural gas transmission,
distribution tariffs and gas tariffs for the household customers applicable from 1 January
2009. The NCCPE decision is having a negative impact on the financial results of LD. The
Company has lodged a complaint against this decision of the NCCPE with the Court.

All important data related to the Company’s activities and information about the time, date
and venue of the general meeting of shareholders as well as other notices to the
shareholders and other persons were published in the Lietuvos Rytas daily newspaper.
Information on all material events of the Company was also submitted to the Securities
Commission of the Republic of Lithuania, the stock exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, the
news agencies BNS, ELTA and REUTERS and posted on the central regulated information
database administered by the stock exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius and the Company
website www.dujos.lt.

NATURAL GAS BUSINESS ENVIRONMENT
The Law on Natural Gas

On 20 March 2007, the Seimas of the Republic of Lithuania passed the new Law on Natural
Gas which came into effect on 19 April 2007.

The Law amendment was initiated with a view to transposing the EU directives provisions
into the legal framework of Lithuania. Nevertheless, the new Law on Natural Gas distorted
the basic EU Gas Directive principles beyond recognition, individual provisions of the Law
contradict each other. Instead of the market liberalization and the creation of the
preconditions for the common EU internal market, the new Law on Natural Gas prescribes
absolute regulation of the national Natural Gas Sector and market isolation and imposes
restrictions on the new suppliers entering the market. A number of provisions of the Law are
discriminatory and contradict the international gas industry practices, imposing restrictions on
the continuation of the national Natural Gas System development and stalling the
implementation of the National Energy Strategy projects aimed at the enhancement of the
security of natural gas supplies.
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Even though almost two years have passed from the adoption of the Law on Natural Gas,
Secondary Legislation has not been prepared as yet without which the practical application of
the Law is impossible.

As the flaws of the Law on Natural Gas are obvious, in 2008, amendments of certain
provisions of the Law on Natural gas were initiated, but the Seimas of the Republic of
Lithuania has not even started debating them.

New initiatives by the EU

The main theme is the initiative by the European Commission (hereinafter referred to as “the
EC”) regarding the further Energy Sector reform (liberalization), the so-called “third energy
package”.

Given that Lithuania together with Finland, Estonia and Latvia are kind of “energy islands”,
the EC proposed to grant them an exemption with regard to any further unbundling of their
activities, i.e. further separation of their companies, until alternative gas supplies are secured.
In the absence of alternative gas supplies sources, such unbundling of gas companies makes
no sense and would lead to a more complicated management of the Natural Gas Sector, to
the deterioration in the gas supplies security and reliability situation and a considerable
increase in the consumer tariffs.

Finland, Estonia and Latvia expressed a wish to make use of this offer by the EC, whereas
the politicians of Lithuania demonstrated their determination to implement the directive
without delay and in full scope.

Licensing

The Law on Natural Gas stipulates that the activities of natural gas transmission, distribution
and supply are subject to licensing. The licences are issued and the supervision of the
licensed activities is executed by the NCCPE. In 2001, the Company was granted by the
NCCPE the licences for the activities of natural gas transmission and distribution and in 2002
the Company was granted the licence for the supply of natural gas.

The Government of the Republic of Lithuania by its Resolution of 5 December 2007 adopted
the new Rules for Licensing Natural Gas Transmission, Distribution, Storage, Liquefaction
and Supply, which revised the definitions of the licensed activities execution territories. In
April of 2008, in accordance with the Rules, the NCCPE renewed the Company’s gas
transmission and distribution licences and in March of 2008, the NCCPE renewed the
Company’s gas supply licence.

LD was granted a licence to engage in the natural gas transmission activities in all the
administrative units of Lithuania.

By the natural gas distribution licence the Company is granted the right to engage in the gas
distribution activities in the territory of 41 municipalities.

The natural gas supply licence grants the Company the right to engage in the natural gas
supply business in the territory of the Republic of Lithuania.

The pricing system and the natural gas tariffs

The Company imports natural gas from the Russian company Gazprom OAO. Natural gas
import price depends on oil and gasoline prices in international market, the USD and EUR
ratio fixed by the European Central Bank and actual natural gas calorific value. Due to the
changes in the aforesaid factors, the natural gas import prices and the selling prices for the
non-household customers are subject to monthly recalculations.
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The specific natural gas tariffs for household customers, however not exceeding the price
caps set by the NCCPE, are set for a one-year-term. Since 1 January 2008, according to the
new version of The Rules for Natural Gas Transmission, Distribution, Storage and Supply, all
household customers pay for natural gas according to a two-component tariff.

The NCCPE by its Resolution of 8 August 2008 adopted The Natural Gas Transmission and
Distribution Price Cap Calculation Methodology and by its Resolution of 29 August 2008 it
adopted The Natural Gas Supply Price Cap Calculation Methodology regulating the principles
of the setting of the natural gas transmission and distribution price caps and gas supply price
caps as well as the setting differentiation principles of concrete tariffs. According to the
Methodologies, the NCCPE sets price caps for a five-year regulation period. The price caps
are subject to annual adjustments depending on the changes in the indicators specified by
the Methodologies.

Pursuant to provisions of the new Methodologies, the NCCPE calculated and by its
Resolution of 31 October 2008 set the Company’s natural gas transmission and distribution
price caps for a five-year regulation period, i.e. from 1 January 2009 till 31 December 2013.
By the NCCPE Resolution of 31 October 2008 an adjusted natural gas supply price cap was
set for the year 20009.

On 24 November 2008, the Company’s Board of Directors set the specific natural gas
transmission and distribution service tariffs and natural gas tariffs for the household
customers applicable in 2009. The NCCPE declined to approve the proposed tariffs, and, on
29 December 2008, unilaterally set LD natural gas transmission and distribution service tariffs
and natural gas tariffs for the household customers applicable from 1 January 2009.

This decision by the NCCPE is having a negative impact on the Company’s financial results
of 2009.

In the opinion of LD, the NCCPE declined the LD request for the approval of the proposed
tariffs set by the Board of Directors without furnishing any legally sound arguments. On 28
January 2009, the Company, in defense of its lawful interests, lodged a complaint with the
Vilnius District Administrative Court requesting the annulment of the aforesaid Resolution of
the NCCPE.

The main problem still remains the instability and the unpredictability of the regulation of the
Sector.

New Secondary Legislation

On 28 June 2008, the Ministry of Economy of the Republic of Lithuania adopted The Rules
for the Installation of New Natural Gas Systems in the Newly Connected Territories and for
the Connection of New Customers’ Systems to the Natural Gas Transmission and
Distribution Systems. The Rules establish the procedure for the introduction of new natural
gas supplies systems in the newly connected territories and for the connection of new
customer gas systems to the gas transmission and distribution systems.

On 17 November 2008, the NCCPE adopted The Methodology for Calculating New Natural
Gas Customers Connection Fees applicable for the calculation of fees of the new household
and non-household customers’ connection to the Natural Gas System (including the case
when for the needs of a customer it is necessary to enhance the capacity through the Natural
Gas System expansion).

Market

In 2008, there were five companies importing natural gas into Lithuania: LD, Achema AB,
Dujotekana UAB, Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné UAB and Haupas UAB. The total volume of
natural gas imported into Lithuania in 2008 amounted to 3.1 billion m®. Haupas UAB did not
use the Company’s Natural Gas System for its imports of natural gas.



LIETUVOS DUJOS AB CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2008 7

Breakdown of natural gas imports to Lithuania, 2008

9.3% 0.5%

38.3%
HLD
Bl Achema AB
ODujotekana UAB
O Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné UAB
B Haupas UAB*

* Data supplied by Haupas UAB.

In 2008, the following companies supplied natural gas to household and non-household
customers of Lithuania: LD, Fortum Joniskio Energija UAB, Druskininky Dujos UAB, agro firm
Josvainiai AB and Intergas UAB. Dujotekana UAB and Haupas UAB supplied gas only to
non-household customers.

Achema AB and Kauno Termofikacijos Elektriné UAB imported natural gas for its own needs.

LD market share, 2004-2008
100%-
|
|
1
|
80%4‘
|
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|
60%-
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1
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40%
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20%-
|
1
|
0%+
Household customers  Non-household customers Total
E2004 02005 02006 W2007 02008

RISK MANAGEMENT AND DESCRIPTION OF THE MAIN RISK FACTORS

In the rapidly changing economic and legal regulation environment, the importance of risk
management is growing. Risk management is a constituent part of LD economic activities. LD
has implemented a Risk Management System. Risk factors are being identified, analyzed
and evaluated as a constituent part of the Company’s objectives, activities and environment
analysis process. The LD Risk Management Process is implemented in accordance with the
methodology that has been developed and comprises the following steps:
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1. Identification of the risk factors, review of the main activity indicators and risk
indicators;

2. Risk analysis, assessment and establishing the risk control measures;

3 Taking decisions regarding the risk levels and developing the Risk Management
Action Plan;

4, Implementation of measures of the Risk Management Action Plan;

5. Monitoring and supervision of the Risk Management Process.

The main risks having the greatest impact to the Company’s activities are as follows: the
natural gas import price fluctuation risk, the credit risk, the legal regulation-related risk, the
competition risk, the macro-economic factors risk, the risk of disruptions of gas import
(supply) and the technical-related risks.

The information on the gas import price fluctuation risk, the credit risk and other financial risks
is presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the year
ended 31 December 2008.

The legal regulation-related risk

The core activities of the Company, i.e. the natural gas transmission, distribution and supply,
are subject to licensing and regulation. The financial results and development prospects of
LD are directly dependent on the NCCPE’s decisions. The Company has lodged several
complaints with the court of law regarding the NCCPE’s decisions related to the setting of the
regulated tariffs. Detailed information on the LD litigation with the NCCPE is presented in the
Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2008.

The frequent changes in relevant legislation, the ill-timed adoption of the secondary
legislation create uncertainty of the business environment, thus aggravating the Company’s
relations with its customers and impeding its ability to plan for long-term. A vivid example was
the hasty adoption of the significant amendments to the tax-regulating legal acts at the end of
2008 which came into effect already from the beginning of 2009.

The Company spares no effort to maintain constructive relations with the regulatory
authorities and to participate in the legal acts drafting process.

The competition-related risk

In its activities the Company faces competition both in the Natural Gas Sector, and in the
Fuel (Energy) Sector. In the Natural Gas Supply Sector, the Company competes with other
companies supplying natural gas. In the Fuel (Energy) Sector, LD competes with suppliers of
alternative fuels (heavy fuel oil, orimulsion, bio fuel, solid fuel) as well as heat, power, etc.
companies operating in this Sector (when the end consumers choose among a variety of
heating systems). A high percentage of natural gas customers have dual-fuel systems and
may use these alternative fuels replacing natural gas.

The macro-economic risk

The deteriorating macro-economic situation in Lithuania is determining the decrease in the
sales volumes, the customers’ settlement irregularities and, respectively, the worsening of the
results of the activities of the Company.

The gas import (supply) disruption risk

All the natural gas supplies are imported into Lithuania via the territory of Belarus. The gas
imports (supplies) disruption risk is possible due to actions of third parties (e.g., actions
analogous to the Russian—Ukrainian gas conflict). However, probability of such disruptions is
very low, since Gazprom OAO is a shareholder of Beltransgaz OAO (the Belarus Gas
Transmission System Operator), moreover, gas is transmitted by transit to the Russian
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Federation Kaliningrad Region through the territory of Lithuania. In case of disruption of gas
imports via Belarus, natural gas would be supplied to Lithuania via the territory of Latvia.

The technical-related risk

With a view to ensuring a reliable operation of its natural gas systems, the Company carries
out periodic maintenance check-ups of the systems, and on the basis of the defects
established during the routine maintenance procedures and taking into account the general
Gas System condition, it drafts and implements the Company’s annual gas systems repair
and reconstruction programmes.

All potentially hazardous equipment and facilities are subject to additional inspections by
respective Potentially Hazardous Equipment Maintenance Supervision authorities.

The Company’s gas equipment maintenance staff is subject to periodic certification
procedures, all gas works are performed exclusively by certified (attested) employees.

With a view to ensuring a timely response to any possible disruptions, emergencies or
accidents, the Company has set up its 24-hour Emergency Services and has drawn up

Emergency Liquidation Plans.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

Group’s key financial indicators

2008 2007 2006
Financial results
Sales, M LTL 1,555.4 1,024.3 779.6
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization (EBITDA), M LTL e e
Profit from operations, M LTL 67.6 124.6 71.2
Profit before taxes, M LTL 73.3 125.3 71.7
Net profit, M LTL 64.2 104.0 57.3
Investments, M LTL 123.3 118.4 122.8
Assets at the end of the year, M LTL 2,529.3 2,459.0 2,303.1
Equity at the end of the year, M LTL 1,882.3 1,929.8 1,855.8
Profitability ratios
EBITDA margin, % 10.4 21.2 21.2
Profit from operations margin, % 4.3 12.1 9.0
Profit before tax margin, % 4.7 12.2 9.1
Net profit margin, % 4.1 10.1 7.3
Average return-on-assets ratio (ROA), % 2.6 4.4 25
Average return-on-equity ratio (ROE), % 34 5.5 3.1
Leverage
Debt to equity ratio*, % 34.4 27.4 241
Debt ratio*, % 25.6 21.5 19.4
Market value ratios
Price-earnings ratio (P/E) 9.21 16.05 31.75
Basic earnings per share, LTL 0.14 0.22 0.12
Dividends per share for the current year, LTL 0.10 0.1 0.06

* The debt covers all non-current liabilities (including grants (deferred revenue) and the deferred

income tax payable) as well as the current liabilities.
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The consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company reflect the financial results
of Lietuvos Dujos AB Group (hereinafter referred to as “the Group”) comprised of Lietuvos
Dujos AB and Palangos Perlas UAB.

Core activities

In 2008 the sales of the Group compared with 2007 increased significantly (51.9% y/y) and
amounted to LTL 1,555.4 million. The basic part of the total sales (99.7%) composed of the
revenue from the core activity (gas transmission, distribution and supply).

The change in the revenue was mostly impacted by the rise in the revenue from the supply
activity, from LTL 777.8 million to LTL 1,278.9 million or by 64.4% yly. This increase was
mainly determined by the increase in the gas sales prices, which was impacted by the natural
gas import price rise due to the oil and its products price growth on the global markets. The
major part of the sales consisted of the supply activity revenue, 82.2%.

The revenue from the gas transportation activity, i.e. the gas transmission and distribution
systems operator’s activity, amounted to 17.5% and rose by 12.9% compared with 2007
(from LTL 240.8 million to LTL 271.9 million) as a result of the increase in the average gas
transmission and distribution service tariffs.

Sales structure, 2008

Other

0.3% Transportation
17.5%

Supply
82.2%

In 2008 the Group’s expenses (cost of sales and operating expenses) increased by 64.7% or
by LTL 586.7 million compared with 2007 and amounted to LTL 1,493.6 million (LTL 906.9
million in 2007).

The significant growth in the expenses was mainly determined by the rise in the cost of sales
which increased even by 83.7%, from LTL 675.6 million to LTL 1,240.9 million. The increase
in the cost of sales was basically determined by the significant rise in the natural gas
procurement cost, which composed 99.96% of the cost of sales. In 2008 the cost of sales
composed 83.1% of all expenses structure.

In 2008 the operating expenses increased by 9.3% (LTL 21.4 million) and amounted to
LTL 252.7 million (LTL 231.3 million in 2007). This change was mainly caused by the growth
in the salaries including the social security contributions (LTL 12.4 million) due to the wages
growth trends on the labor market, as well as the higher repairs and maintenance works
expenses (LTL 4.2 million) due to the increase in the volume and cost of these works in 2008.
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Structure of expenses, 2008

Taxes (income tax
excluded)
0.8%

Depreciation and
amortization
6.3%

Other expences
3.9%

Salaries and social
security
5.9%

Cost of sales (gas
expenses)
83.1%

Other activities

In 2008 the other operating activities income (net) amounted to LTL 5.9 million
(LTL 7.3 million in 2007). The result decreased by LTL 1.4 million (19.2%) mainly due to the
fact that a lower profit was received from the disposal of the non-current tangible assets
unused in the activities of the Group.

Financial and investing activities

In 2008 the result from the financial and investing activities significantly increased — from
LTL 0.7 million to LTL 5.7 million. The better result was determined by the effective short-
term investing of funds and the smaller interest expenses.

Activity results

In 2008 the Group’s earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (EBITDA)
decreased by 26.1% compared with 2007 and amounted to LTL 162.0 million (LTL 219.2
million in 2007). The profit before tax amounted to LTL 73.3 million, which represents a
decrease of LTL 52.0 million (41.5%) compared with 2007 (LTL 125.3 million). The net profit
decreased by LTL 39.8 million (38.3%) and amounted to LTL 64.2 million (LTL 104.0 million
in 2007). The main reason of the decreased profit was decrease in the result of the supply
activity. In the activity of gas supply to the household customers the Company incurred a
significant loss due to the approved import price, when calculating the gas supply price, much
lower than the actual gas import price (the price the household customers were paying for the
natural gas since April 2008 was much lower than the actual gas import price). The situation
is determined by the current legal basis, in which, irrespectively of the actual gas import price
fluctuations, gas price for household consumers remains stable for the whole year.

The low profitability ratios in 2008 were affected by the regulation of the Company’s activities:
the gas transportation and supply tariffs are regulated by the NCCPE.
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Investments

In 2008 the Group’s investments increased by LTL 4.9 million or by 4.1% compared with the
previous year (from LTL 118.4 million to LTL 123.3 million).

Investments, M LTL
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Financial debt
During the year 2008 the financial debt of the Group decreased by LTL 10.9 million (50.5%)

and at the end of the period amounted to LTL 10.7 million. The major part of investments is
financed by the Company’s own funds.

Financial debt, M LTL
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Balance structure
Assets

The value of the assets owned by the Group increased by LTL 70.3 million (2.9%), from LTL
2,459.0 million in 2007 to LTL 2,529.3 million in 2008.

During 2008 the non-current assets increased by LTL 28.4 million and at the end of the
period amounted to LTL 2,249.1 million (88.9% of the total assets). The change was
determined by the large investments into the gas transmission and distribution systems (the
implementation of a number of major investment projects included into the National Energy
Strategy was started). The major part of the non-current assets (87.1%) consisted of the gas
transmission and distribution pipelines and related installations.

In 2008 the value of the current assets (LTL 280.2 million) was larger by LTL 41.9 million
compared to 2007 due to the significant increase (by LTL 42.5 million) in the accounts
receivable, which composed the major part of the current assets (46.7%). The increase in the
accounts receivable was impacted by growth in the gas sales prices in 2008.

Equity and liabilities

During 2008 the Group’s equity decreased by 2.5% (LTL 47.5 million), i.e. from LTL 1,929.8
million in 2007 to LTL 1,882.3 million in 2008.The key factor that impacted this decrease is as
follows: after the change in the income tax rate, the loss due to the recalculation of the
deferred income tax (-LTL 61.7 million) was accounted in the Retained Earnings ltem in the
balance sheet.

Accounts payable and liabilities increased by LTL 117.8 million and at the end of the year
amounted to LTL 647.0 million. The main reasons of the accounts payables and liabilities
increase are as follows: the increase in the current trade payables and the increase in the
deferred tax liability due to the recalculation of deferred income tax, which composed the
largest part (37.5%) of the liabilities structure in 2008.
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Cash flows

During 2008 the Group’s net cash flows from its operating activities increased by
LTL 62.5 million (37.8%) and amounted to LTL 227.7 million (LTL 165.2 million in 2007). The
main reason of the increase in the cash flows was the decrease in the natural gas store.

Cash flows from operating activities, M LTL
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The detailed information on the financial performance of the Group is presented in the
Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December
2008.

BUSINESS PLANS AND FORECASTS

Given the deteriorating economic situation in Lithuania and with a view to stabilize the
growing gas transmission and distribution prices, in 2009 the Company’s attention will be
focused on raising efficiency of operations and cost saving.

It is forecasted that in 2009, compared to 2008, the natural gas volume transmission to the
customers of Lithuania via the transmission system of LD will drop and will amount to
approximately 3 billion m®. The Company’s natural gas sales volumes are projected at 1.2
billion m®, i.e. at a similar level to the ones of 2008. In 2009, the Company plans to connect
approximately 5.4 thousand new customers, but this number might be corrected by the
developments in the economic situation of Lithuania. In 2009, the Company’s investments
into the construction of new gas systems are planned at a higher level compared to the ones
of 2008.

2009 will see the continuation of the implementation of a number of major investment
projects. We will proceed with the construction project of the new Jaunitnai Gas Compressor
Station. The completion of the construction of the Gas Compressor Station, which will open
up a possibility to raise the natural gas transmission capacity and enhance the safety and
reliability of the natural gas supplies to customers, following the decommissioning of the
Ignalina Nuclear Power Plant, as well as to secure the increase in gas transit to the
Kaliningrad Region of the Russian Federation, is scheduled for 2010.

It is planned that 2009 will mark the completion of the construction of the Gas Transmission
Pipeline Sakiai—Kaliningrad (the state border with the Russian Federation) and of the works
for the enhancing of the capacity of the Sakiai Gas Metering Station.

We are continuing our activities directed towards the improvement of the customer relations,
the upgrading of the settlement systems and the customer information. From the beginning of
2009 the Company’s non-household customers were offered a new service of the e-billing
and accounting via the Internet. From the beginning of 2009, our non-household customers
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with annual consumption up to 1 million m* have a possibility of e-declaring of consumed
volumes. From 1 February 2009, all the household customers are offered a possibility to pay
for gas supplies by Direct Debit.

MANAGEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Business vision

The vision of the Company is to become the best Energy Sector company.
We will achieve it by:
= Being a transparent, reliable, attractive to customer and socially responsible
company;
Raising corporate value;
Attracting, retaining and training top employees;
Optimizing costs, securing adequate return on investment;
Expanding our activities to capture new segments;
Developing our infrastructure (Natural Gas Systems);
Securing a high IT, technical and technological level.

Information on the observance of the Code of Governance

The Company observes the provisions of the Code of Governance.

Shareholders and shares

The authorized capital of the Company is divided into 469,068,254 fully paid ordinary

registered shares with par value of LTL 1 (one) each. In 2008, the par value of shares, the
value of the authorized capital and the structure of shareholders did not change.

Number of shares Votes at the
held, pcs / share in. general meetin
Shareholder the authorized gf shareholders?
capital, LTL %

E.ON Ruhrgas International AG 182,534,384 38.9%
Gazprom OAO 173,847,696 37.1%
State Enterprise State Property Fund 83,030,367 17.7%
Small shareholders 29,655,807 6.3%
Total: 469,068,254 100.0%

Structure of LD shareholders as of 31 Dec 2008
6.3%

17.7%

37.1%

38.9%

B Gazprom OAO

M E.ON Ruhrgas International AG
State Property Fund
Small shareholders

The Company has not acquired its own shares and in 2008 it did not make any transactions
related either to the acquisition or disposal of its own shares.
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As of 31 December 2008, LD was controlled by 2.373 shareholders holding its shares by the
right of ownership.

The shareholders of the Company E.ON Ruhrgas International AG, Gazprom OAO and the
state enterprise State Property Fund have the controlling interest and have a casting vote
when taking decisions at the general meeting of shareholders. The aforesaid major
shareholders have concluded a shareholders’ agreement setting out the shareholders’
common aims related to the Company’s activities, development of the facility and the market.
The agreement is confidential.

The Company’s shareholders E.ON Ruhrgas International AG, Gazprom OAO and the state
enterprise State Property Fund are not subject to any securities disposal restrictions except
the ones provided for in the shares purchase—sale (privatization) agreements.

As far as the Company knows, there exist no shareholders arrangements that might serve as
gounds for the securities disposal restrictions and/or voting right restrictions except the
arrangements made in the shares purchase—sale (privatization) agreements and the
shareholders’ agreement.

There exists one important agreement in which the Issuer is involved as a party and that
would be changed or discontinued should there occur a change in the Issuer’s control. The
agreement is confidential.

Data about trading in the Issuer’s securities on the regulated markets

The Company’s shares are traded on the regulated market, they are quoted at the stock
exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius. On 1 January 2008 LD shares were transferred from the
Secondary List into the Main List.

Main data about LD shares

ISIN code LT0000116220
| Abbreviation LDJ1L
. Number of shares (pcs) 469,068,254

In 2008, the turnover of the trading in LD shares amounted to LTL 11.6 million (2007: LTL
29.2 million). Through the transactions concluded, 5,547,372 shares were disposed (2007:
7,754,250).

As of 31 December 2008, LD capitalization amounted to LTL 605.1 million (as of 31
December 2007: LTL 1,655.8 million).

The securities markets of the Baltic States did not manage to escape intact the general
downturn related to the global finance and securities market crisis. Over 2008, the
capitalization of the companies quoted at the stock exchange NASDAQ OMX Vilnius
decreased by 62.2%. The LD shares were no exception: they decreased in value by 63.5%.

Share price dynamics NASDAQ OMX Vilnius, 2006-2008

Period
2006 2007 2008
Highest price per share 4.02 412 3.65
Lowest price per share 3.10 3.28 1.01
Weighted average price per share 3.58 3.76 2.08
Price per share as of end of the period 3.81 3.53 1.29
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Dividends

The Company is consistently pursuing its dividend payout policy and every year it
appropriates part of the profit to the payout of dividends. For 2008, it was allocated to pay in
dividends a total amount of LTL 45.0 million, or 9.6 cents per share. (2007: LTL 50.0 million
or 10.7 cents per share).
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Agreements with intermediaries of public trading in securities

On 26 November 2003, the Company concluded an agreement with the financial brokerage
company Finasta AB (address of the registered office Maironio str. 11, Vilnius, Company
Code 122570630, License No AQ087) regarding the provision of services whereby the
Company assigned the financial brokerage company Finasta AB the management of
securities issued by the Company as well as the administration of personal securities
accounts.

Management of the Company

The Company is a vertically integrated enterprise. The Company acts pursuant to the
Company Law of the Republic of Lithuania, the Law on Securities of the Republic of
Lithuania, the Bylaws of the Company as well as other applicable legal acts of the Republic of
Lithuania.

On 1 January 2008, the Company changed its Organization Chart in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable European Union legislation regarding the separation of the
Company’s gas transmission, distribution and supply activities. It was the last reorganization
of the Company that was relatively low-cost. Any further separation would be associated with
significant cost that ultimately will have to be paid by gas customers.

The Company has five natural gas distribution branches in different regions of Lithuania:
Vilnius, Kaunas, Klaipéda, Siauliai and Panevézys.
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Organizational management structure

GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

GENERAL MANAGER

BRANCHES

CENTRE .
(VILNIUS, KAUNAS, KLAIPEDA,

OF ADMINISTRATION AND GAS
TRANSMISSION

SIAULIAI, PANEVEZYS)

Functions:
*administration
etransmission imports, gas sales to

system operator, gas household and non-
transit household

customers)

*supply (gas

Functions:
distribution system operator

The Bylaws of the Company provide for a possibility of amending the Bylaws by a decision of
a general meeting of shareholders taken by a majority vote that has to be no less than 2/3 of
all the votes carried by the shares held by the shareholders attending the general meeting of
shareholders.

According to the Company's Bylaws registered with the Register of Legal Persons on 14 May
2008 the Company has the following managing bodies:

- The Board of Directors,

- The Chief Executive Officer — General Manager.

According to the Bylaws, the Company's Board of Directors consists of 5 (five) members
elected for a period of three years in accordance with The Company Law of the Republic of
Lithuania. Members of the Board of Directors elect the Chairman of the Board of Directors.
The Chairman of the Board of Directors and his Deputy are elected for a period of two years
by rotation. Members of the Board of Directors may be re-elected for another term.

Composition of the Board of Directors from 18 April 2007 to 16 April 2008:

No. Full name Position title Start and end of term
Members of the Board of Directors:

1. Stephan Kamphues gﬂzggfsn of the Board of ]2 ﬁg:: 388273 )

N Dr Valery Golubev cl?feriL:gCgr::irman of the Board ]g ﬁg:: 38(1)(7) -

3. | DrEike Benke Member of the Board of e ﬁg::: e

4. Vladas Kazimieras Gagilas ¢ 12 ﬁg:: 38?(7) B

51 Kirill Seleznev ‘ 12 ﬁg:: 38?(7) B
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Composition of the Board of Directors from 16 April 2008:
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No. | Full name Position title Start and end of term
Members of the Board of Directors:

1. DrAchim Saul Chairman of the Board of e 22:: 2008

2. Dr Valery Golubev EferiL:teng::irman of the Board 12 22:: 38(1)(7) -

3. Vladas Kazimieras Gagilas '\D/Iﬁ;:?grr:f the Board of 12 ﬁg:: ;8% -

4. Kirill Seleznev o 12 22:: 28% B

5. Marcus A. Soehrich “ 12 22:: gg?g -

In 2008, tantiemes totaling LTL 79.0 thousand were disbursed to the members of the Board
of Directors, i.e. LTL 15.8 thousand per member of the Board of Directors on average. Other
payouts to the members of the Board of Directors totaled LTL 326.9 thousand, i.e. LTL 65.4
thousand per member of the Board of Directors on average.

Information on the start and end of the term of executive directorship:

No.

Full name

Position title

Start and end of term

Executive directorship

Viktoras
ValentukevicCius

General Manager

19 April 2007 -
18 April 2010

Deputy General Manager — Director

2. Dr Joachim Hockertz From 1 July 2002
of Commerce
3. Jonas Janulionis ggputy CamerEl WenEger = EemE:l From 13 September 2002
irector
4. Viadimir Obukhov DerLy CEmeTE] Memeger=ICEEr | =0m o nw o
for Gas Purchase
Deputy General Manager — Chief 19 April 2007 —
5. Giedre Glinskiené Financial Officer (till 31 December 18 April 2010

2007: Chief Financial Officer)

In 2008, payouts to the Executive directorship of the Company totaled LTL 2,018.1 thousand,
i.e. LTL 403.6 thousand per director on average.
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Participation of members of the governing bodies in the authorized share capital:

Full name

Position title

Participation in the capital of the Issuer

Share of the
authorized capital
held, %

Share of the voting
rights held, %

Board of Directors (as of 31 De

c 2008)

Dr Achim Saul

Chairman of the Board
of Directors

Dr Valery Golubev

Vice Chairman of the
Board of Directors

Vladas Kazimieras Gagilas

Member of the Board
of Directors

Kirill Seleznev

Marcus A. Soehrich

Executive directorship (as of 31 Dec 2008)

Viktoras ValentukeviCius

CEO - General
Manager

0.003

0.003

Dr Joachim Hockertz

Deputy General
Manager — Director of
Commerce

0.006

0.006

Jonas Janulionis

Deputy General
Manager — Technical
Director

0.001

0.001

Vladimir Obukhov

Deputy General
Manager — Director for
Gas Purchase

Giedré Glinskiené

Deputy General
Manager — Chief
Financial Officer

Subsidiary

LD has one subsidiary, Palangos Perlas UAB. 100% of Palangos Perlas UAB shares are held

by LD.

Main data about Palangos Perlas UAB

Date and place of registration:

Company code:
Registered office:
Telephone number:
E-mail address:
Website:

19 January 1998, Register of Legal Persons of the
Republic of Lithuania

152681177

Gintaro str. 36, LT-00133 Palanga, Lithuania

+370 460 52441

zydroji_liepsna@is. It
www.zydrojiliepsna.lt

In 2008, the authorized capital of Palangos Perlas UAB did not change. It is divided into
9,703,763 ordinary registered shares with par value of LTL 1 (one) each. The main areas of
the company activities: hotel and other board and lodging services, organization of seminars
and conferences. In 2008, the average number of employees amounted to 29 (2007: 30

employees)

In 2008, Palangos Perlas UAB earned a net profit of LTL 0.3 million (2007: LTL 0.2 million).
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Transactions of associated parties

The information is presented in the Consolidated and Parent Company’s Financial
Statements for the year ended 31 December 2008.
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The Company’s Natural Gas Transmission and Distribution System
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Core business activity of the Company:

- Transmission: transmission of natural gas via gas transmission system mostly comprised
of high-pressure pipelines, except for the production process pipeline network and part of the
high-pressure gas pipelines mainly used for the local distribution of natural gas, designed for
the delivery of natural gas to consumers, except for gas supply.

- Distribution: distribution of natural gas via gas distribution pipelines except for the supply.

- Supply: gas selling and/or reselling to customers and gas delivery to the system.

Gas distribution
pipelines
7.9 thou km

Gas transmission
pipelines
1.8 thou km

Gas distribution ~ Gas metering Gas compressor
stations stations station
65 3 1
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TRANSMISSION OF NATURAL GAS

In 2008, the volumes of natural gas transmitted via the transmission system totaled 3,197.0
million m®. Of this total, 1,223.3 million m*® were transmitted to the customers of LD and
1,973.7 million m® of natural gas were transmitted to customers purchasing gas not from LD,
but from other suppliers. Compared to 2007, the natural gas transmission volumes decreased
by 10.2%, mainly due to the decrease in the volumes transmitted for Achema AB and other
large customers.

Natural gas transmission volumes, MCM
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Transit

In 2008 the natural gas transit volumes to the Kaliningrad Region of Russian Federation
totaled 1,256.7 million m®, which represents an increase of 3.4% vyly.

Transit of natural gas to Kaliningrad Region of RF,
MCM
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Investments in the transmission system

In 2008, investments into the construction of new transmission systems totaled LTL 34.7
million. In 2007, investments into the construction of new transmission systems amounted to
LTL 34.24 million. 2008 saw the implementation of the following major projects: the
Engineering Design of a new Gas Compressor Station in Jaunidnai, Sirvintos District, The
Construction of a Transmission Pipeline Branch to the Town of Rietavas and the Construction
of Rietavas Gas Distribution Station (LTL 1.8 million). Part of the investment funds were
devoted to the construction of the transmission pipeline section from the Sakiai Gas Metering
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Station to the Kaliningrad Region of the Russian Federation and the Sakiai Gas Metering
Station capacity expansion engineering design and preparatory works projects.

The investments in the reconstruction of the transmission system totaled LTL 14.5 million, the
lion’s share of these funds were spent on the reconstruction of the gas distribution stations
(LTL 9.0 million). The remaining share of the funds was spent on the necessary works for the
reconstruction of the linear part of the transmission pipelines, and on the renovation of the
telemetry, the SCADA, the Gas Compressor Station equipment and the gas metering
devices.

On order to enhance the safety and reliability of natural gas transmission via the transmission
system, LD plans to test the internal part of the transmission pipelines using specialized
intelligent pigging devices. In 2008, we installed the equipment necessary for the execution of
these works.

Maintenance of the transmission system

In 2008, the maintenance of the transmission system was carried out in accordance with the
provisions of the applicable legal acts, so we managed to avert accidents, major disruptions
or malfunctions. With a view to enhancing the reliability, efficiency and safety of the
transmission pipelines operations we executed all the gas repair and maintenance works that
had been scheduled for the period.

As regards the linear part of the transmission system, we carried out the repairs of a 50 km-
long section of the Panevézys—Siauliai Gas Transmission Pipeline. As part of the repair
works programme, we renovated two line block valves, we replaced 17 above-ground gas
pipeline crossings with the underground ones, we carried out the pressure tests and the
purging works.

We prepared the engineering design of the repairs and pressure tests of the linear part of the
IvaceviCiai—Vilnius—Riga Gas Transmission Pipeline. On the linear part of the gas
transmission pipeline, the line block valve units were either repaired or replaced.

The scheduled repairs of the technological equipment and the buildings and structures of the
Panevezys Gas Compressor Station and the gas distribution stations were also successfully
executed.

DISTRIBUTION OF NATURAL GAS

In 2008, the volumes of natural gas distributed via the gas distribution system by the
Company totaled 1,082.7 million m?, which represents a drop of 5.4% vyly.

Natural gas distribution volumes, MCM
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Investments into the distribution system

In 2008, the investments into the construction of new gas distribution systems totaled LTL
50.0 million; 239.0 km of new distribution pipelines were constructed. In 2007, the
investments totaled LTL 45.43 million.

The major projects implemented in 2008 were as follows: The Construction of the Gas
Distribution Pipeline to the Town of Rietavas and in the Town of Rietavas (LTL 2.0 million)
and The Construction of the Gas Distribution Pipeline to Connect Ramygala (also LTL 2.0
million). In all, 5.9 thousand new customers were connected to the gas system in 2008.

In 2008, the investments in the reconstruction of the distribution system totaled LTL 8.3
million. We invested into the renovation of the distribution pipelines and gas pressure
regulation units.

Maintenance of the distribution system

The Company runs a gas distribution system consisting of 7.9 thousand km of gas
distribution lines and, being the owner of the distribution system, is responsible for its reliable,
efficient and safe operation. The Company spares no effort to ensure proper maintenance of
the gas systems: the gas pipelines are subjected to leakage tests, the system is inspected
and technical tests are performed on a regular basis. Any defects diagnosed when carrying
out the routine technical maintenance tasks are either eliminated immediately or are included
into the gas systems repair works programme or the reconstruction works programme on the
basis of which the Company eliminates the defects so that the gas system is kept in good
working order. In 2008, in accordance of the aforesaid programmes, we carried out works
related to the repairs or reconstruction of the Company’s gas pressure regulation units,
pipelines, valves, service lines, etc.

The buy out of gas pipelines

In accordance with the Law on Natural Gas of the Republic of Lithuania and pursuant to the
procedure approved by the order of the Ministry of Economy dated 20 June 2001, in 2002
the Company started the process of buying out natural gas supply systems of common use
owned by other legal entities and natural persons. During 2002-2008 the Company has
bought out 313 km pipelines for the total value of LTL 5.0 million. In accordance with the
regulation of the Order, the owners of the natural gas common use systems could make the
requests till 31 December 2007. As of 31 December 2008 the Company has unsatisfied
requests to buy out 115 km pipelines with the estimated price of approximately LTL 1 million
according to the Company’s calculation.

Through the buy out of gas pipelines belonging to other owners the Company seeks to
ensure the integrity of the gas system, to secure its safe and reliable operation as well as the
possibly of its further development so that new customers can be connected to it.

SUPPLY OF NATURAL GAS

In 2008, LD purchased natural gas from Gazprom OAO according to a long-term (until 2015)
natural gas supply agreement.

Pursuant to the National Energy Strategy and in order to secure safe and uninterrupted
supplies of natural gas to customers, the Company has been accumulating contingency gas
reserves in the Incukalns (the Republic of Latvia) Underground Gas Storage Facility. For
detailed information on the contingency gas reserve volumes and the accumulation schedule
see the Resolution of the Government of the Republic of Lithuania of 26 February 2008 “On
approval of the list of measures that guarantee security of natural gas supplies”.
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Customers

All natural gas customers are divided into the household customers (natural persons buying
gas for their private needs, for their family or household needs) and the non-household
customers. Already from 1 July 2007, all non-household customers became eligible
customers and are free to choose their gas suppliers at their own discretion. However, almost
100% of the household customers still choose LD as their favorite supplier, thus
demonstrating their loyalty to the Company. On the non-household customers’ market, the
share of LD is 34%.

In 2008, LD supplied to its customers 1,223.3 million m* of natural gas: the volume of natural
gas supplied to the non-household customers amounted to 1,041.0 million m* and the volume
of natural gas supplied to the household customers amounted to 182.3 million m*. In 2007,
the gas volume supplies totaled 1,364.1 million m?, i.e. they were by 10.3% higher.

LD sales, thou CM
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Number of non-household customers that have concluded
gas supply agreements as of 31 Dec 2008, thou
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Lithuanian non-household customer market, 2008
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Lithuanian natural gas consumers, 2008

Communal .
household Agricultural Heat and power
companies generating
Houselods ~customers :
Industrial 5.6% 3.6% 0.7% companies
companies 41.2%

11.2%

Producers of
fertilizers
37.7%

28



LIETUVOS DUJOS AB CONSOLIDATED ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2008 29

Structure of natural gas customers who buy gas from LD,

2008
Communal Agricultural
household companies Heat and pow er
customers 1.6% generating
9.0% companies

Households
14.9%

45.2%

Industrial Producers of
companies fertilizers
28.5% 0.8%

In 2008, Lithuania's natural gas transportation and sell volumes, compared to 2007,
decreased. The decrease was mainly determined by the slowdown of the national economic
growth, the natural gas imports price rise in the second half of 2008 and the warmer weather
temperatures during the heating season.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Being a socially responsible company, LD spares no effort to minimize the negative impact of
its activities upon the environment.

The priority areas of the environmental protection activities remain unchanged and are as
follows:

- protection of the natural environment at the gas facility sites: industrial facilities and gas
supplied to customers are heated using state of the art appliances with minimum environment
pollution effect;

- ensuring industrial and ecological safety during the construction and maintenance of gas
facilities: every endeavor is made to minimize the negative impact of these activities on the
environment;

- ensuring industrial and ecological safety at the gas facility sites: gas system repairs and
tests are carried out employing state of the art technologies with the view of minimizing the
pollutant emissions into the environment. The Company has implemented a programme of
measures to collect and utilize the materials that were used in the operation, waste, scrap
and effluent. In the staff training process, a fair amount of attention is devoted to the
ecological education.

With the help of the measures implemented by the Company the environmental safety
situation is improving and the environmental pollution is being reduced. In 2008, LD started
the drafting and in 2009 is planning to implement the Environmental Management System in
accordance with the ISO 14000 standard requirements.

In order to reduce the environmental pollution, the Company has been systematically
modernizing its gas distribution stations. In 2008, the new Jauniinai Gas Compressor Station
engineering design was started. The new Gas Compressor Station will be much more
advanced, economical and environment-friendly than the Panevézys Gas Compressor
Station which has been in operation since 1974.

Of all the activities pursued by LD, the facility giving highest pollutant emissions is the
Panevezys Gas Compressor Station. The pollution levels depend on the operation-use time



Recorded emissions of natural gas (MCM)

_Average number of Group employees on the roll

Average number  Change

Year of employees on = compared to

' the roll previous year
2007 1.813 -0,8%*

2008 1.821 +0,4%**

' Pollutant (tons) 2008 2007
CO 29.0 17.6
NOx 13.8 7.9
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of the Compressor units, their load factors, the number of their start-ups, etc. In 2008, the
operation-use time of the Gas Compressor Station was two times longer than in 2007, which
resulted in almost two times higher pollutant emissions (CO and NO,).

Due to the very nature of the natural gas operation maintenance system and due to the
occupational safety system requirements, a small proportion of gas volumes are emitted form
the gas pipeline system into the atmosphere. In its business activities, the Company
implements measures to minimize the emissions.

2008 2007
13.2 15.1

In the future, through the modernization of its gas systems and planning the procurement of
new equipment and new construction, LD will follow the aforesaid strategic environmental
protection guidelines.

STAFF

* compared to 2006
** compared to 2007

The turnover of employees made up 8.7% (2007: 9.5%).

Workers (blue-collar) made up 39.4% of all Group employees on the roll (2007: 40.7%).
Managing staff, specialists and white-collar office employees comprised 60.6% of the staff
(2007: 59.3%). In 2008, 66% of the Group employees were male and 34% of the Group
employees were female.

The average age of the Group employees was 45.2 years (2007: 46.5 years) and the
average work experience was 12.2 years (2007: 15.3 years). The number of employees with
university education increased by 6%.

Age
Under 30 years
Over 60 years old old
8% 12%

30-40 years old
50-60 years old 17%

33%

40-50 years old
30%
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Work record

Over 30 years

8% Under 5 years
20-30 years 26%

20%

5-10 years
10%

10-20 years
36%

Educational background

Secondary
education
33%

High education
44%

Unfini

secondary Higer education
education 21%

2%

Group’s average monthly salary by employee categories, in LTL

Average number of employees

Employees on the roll in 2007

Average monthly salary,
LTL

Managing staff,

specialists and white- | 1,076 3,027
collar employees

Workers 737 1,934
Total: 1,813 2,582

Average number of employees

Employees on the roll in 2008

Average monthly salary,
LTL

Managing staff,

specialists and white- 1,104 3,469
collar employees

Workers 717 2,243
Total: 1,821 2,986

Great attention was devoted to the training of the Company employees and the improvement
of their qualifications. The resources of the European Union Structural Funds allocated for the
training of the professional competences and the general skills of the middle level managers
and specialists and their reserve have been successfully invested.

As a result of the general trainings arranged by the Company, LD employees improved their
leadership/management skills, project management skills, and other general skills, deepened
their understanding of the legal, accountancy-related matters, improved their foreign
language and computer skills, etc. LD employees also participated in professional trainings.
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With the aim of raising the efficiency of the implementation of the Company strategy and its
main goals, the employee motivation system and improving the career planning, in 2008,
Human Resource Management System was implemented at the Company. The Company
updated its Human Resources Management Policies description aimed at establishing a
uniform human resources management system and uniform human resources management
principles.

At LD branches there were local units of trade unions united into the Lithuanian Association
of Gas Industry Trade Unions. The Company Management and representatives of the trade
unions closely cooperated in handling the employees’ social, cultural, health, etc. issues and
held joint meetings on a regular basis.

The Company’s Collective Bargaining Agreement, signed on 6 December 2006, remains in
effect untii 20 May 2010. Neither the labor contracts, nor the Collective Bargaining
Agreement provide for any extraordinary Company employees rights or duties. The rights and
duties usually applied in general practice have been established.

Even though the work of LD employees often involves dangerous and complicated
operations, as a result of the ongoing implementation of preventive measures, in 2008, LD
succeeded in averting severe industrial injuries.

MEMBERSHIP IN ASSOCIATED STRUCTURES AND INTERNATIONAL COOPERATION
The Company is a member of the following organizations:

- The Lithuanian Gas Association. The General Manager of LD Viktoras ValentukeviCius is
the President of this Association from 16 June 2008. Website: www.dua.lt.

- The Association “Eurogas”. It is a non profit organization uniting the European gas
companies and promoting their cooperation, taking stance on issues of interest to the
European countries’ natural gas industries and the European Institutions with respect to
natural gas business as well as participating in the public opinion formation process. LD is its
full member from 1 January 2009. Website: www.eurogas.com.

- The association of transmission pipeline companies of the Baltic Sea Region “Baltic Gas”.
Website: www.balticgas.org. Membership of LD in this association dates back to 1999. From
2006, LD has a representative in the Board of this association. “Baltic Gas” is an association
of the Baltic Sea Region promoting use of natural gas in the Baltic Sea Region, development
of an integrated natural gas consumer market, seeking to eliminate or reduce the non-
commercial obstacles in the way of natural gas business, e.g. related to tax policy, etc.

- The Chamber of Commerce of Germany and the Baltic countries in Estonia, Latvia and
Lithuania. Website: www.ahk-balt.org.

- The association of the largest and most active investors in the economy of Lithuania
“Investors’ Forum”. Website: www.investorsforum.It.

The Company does not participate in the capital of any of the aforesaid associated structures.

The member of the association “Baltic Gas” and The Chamber of Commerce of Germany and
the Baltic countries E.ON Ruhrgas International AG and the member of the association
“Baltic Gas” OAO Gazprom each hold over 5% of shares of the Company.

2008 saw the continuation of the tradition of holding meetings of the managers and
specialists the gas companies of the three Baltic States (LD, Latvijas Gaze A/S and Eesti
Gaas AS) aimed at resolving common issues with respect to securing safe and reliable
natural gas supplies in the Baltic States Region.
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SPONSORSHIP PROGRAMS

With a view to promoting social development and welfare, every year LD supports a vast
number of social welfare projects, including the ones of social patronage and care, health
protection, preservation of cultural heritage, art and sport, education and science. In 2008, LD
rendered support to more than 50 institutions, organizations or supported their projects. The
most significant ones are as follows:

- support to the institutions and organizations of disabled children: Public Body “Mazoji
Guboja”, Lithuanian Welfare Society for Persons with Mental Disability "Viltis”, Vilnius J.
Lauzikas General Education Consultation Centre, Kaunas Caritative Society for Blind &
Partially Sighted Children “Akiy Sviesa”, Sport Club “Draugysté”;

- support to Vilnius University Hospital Santaridkés Clinic and Vilnius Maternity Hospital;

- support to the Direction of the KurSiy Nerija National. Not only did LD render material
assistance for the replanting of the pine trees following the forest fire in Smiltyné, but also
arranged a voluntary reforestation work action for 400 of its employees including their family
members. On 12 April 2008, the LD employees planted 32 thousand saplings;

- support to Lithuanian Institute, the Lithuanian Art Museum and the Lithuanian Artists’ Union
in organizing various cultural events;

- support in organizing the XllI Pazaislis Music Festival that has already become traditional,
the festival that is famous not merely for being the longest, the largest and the most popular
with the public, but also the most democratic one, for its programmes represent a cross-
section of genres of music and cater to diverse tastes. Support to Public Body Science
Research Institute, Public Body J. lvanauskaité Literary & Artisitc Heritage Centre to erect a
memorial to the Lithuanian writer Jurga lvanauskaité;

- support to V. Alekna’s Club for the organization of the international sports festival at Kaunas
Darius & Girénas Stadium; support to the Association of Lithuanian Women and the
Lithuanian Sports Society “Zalgiris”;

- support to Vilnius Gediminas Technical University and Kaunas University of Technology in
organizing their Student Career Days. Support to Vilnius University for the procurement of
equipment for the German Philology Studies Auditorium;

- support for projects aimed at reducing business restrictions, bureaucracy and corruption
and for building civil society.

SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Almost 100% of the total gas volumes demanded by Lithuania’s customers is supplied
through the Natural Gas System operated by the Company. Natural gas has already reached
more than one remote corner of Lithuania, an ever increasing number of enterprises and
social institutions start using natural gas. Natural gas contributes to business development in
the provincial towns and settlements of Lithuania. The Company is consistently increasing its
investments in order to minimize the number of towns and settlements that are still not
connected to the natural gas grid.

The Company through its trade in the cleanest fossil fuel, natural gas, and through the natural
gas transmission and distribution activities is contributing to a cleaner environment of
Lithuania. The Company supplies, transmits and distributes an environmentally friendly fuel,
the promotion of which reduces the environmental pollution. At the same time the Company
promotes economical and rational use of this non renewable natural resource.
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In pursuing socially responsible business practices, the Company lays a stress on the
environmental protection, human rights and the Company’s employees’ rights, promotion of
economic development and active participation in social life. Primarily focusing on the
environmental protection and the Company’s human resources management policies, in
2008, LD launched two major projects: started the implementation of a new environmental
standard solution and initiated the formation of new updated Human Resourse Policies.

Seeking to continue its pursuit of the socially responsible business practices, the Company is
focusing on the review of its routine processes and the audit of specific areas of activity of the
Company. In this way, LD is directing its activities towards the socially responsible business
practices.



Disclosure form concerning the compliance with the Governance Code for the stock company

,Lietuvos dujos” listed on the regulated market

The stock company ,, Lietuvos dujos *, following Article 21 paragraph 3 of the Law on Securities of the Republic of Lithuania and item 20.5 of
the Trading Rules of the Vilnius Stock Exchange, discloses its compliance with the Governance Code, approved by the VSE for the companies

listed on the regulated market, and its specific provisions.

YES/NO
/NOT
PRINCIPLES/ RECOMMENDATIONS COMMENTARY
APPLICA

BLE

Principle I: Basic Provisions

The overriding objective of a company should be to operate in common interests of all the shareholders by optimizing over time

shareholder value.

1.1. A company should adopt and make public the | Yes The strategy of development and objectives of Joint-Stock
company’s development strategy and objectives by clearly Company ‘Lietuvos dujos’ are set forth in internal
declaring how the company intends to meet the interests of documentation and are described as individual business
its shareholders and optimize shareholder value. activities and objectives. The Company is updating its

development plans dependent on the situation in the market

and amendments to the regulating environment.

1.2. All management bodies of a company should act in | Yes
furtherance of the declared strategic objectives in view of

the need to optimize shareholder value.

1.3. A company’s supervisory and management bodies | Yes This recommendation is implemented by the Board of
should act in close co-operation in order to attain maximum Directors and the Manager. The Supervisory Board is not
benefit for the company and its shareholders. formed to make cooperation between the Board of Directors

and the Manager tighter, to make the governance of the
Company more efficient, to quicken the implementation of the

resolutions adopted and to realize direct responsibility.

1.4. A company’s supervisory and management bodies | Yes
should ensure that the rights and interests of persons other
than the company’s shareholders (e.g. employees, creditors,
suppliers, clients, local community), participating in or

connected with the company’s operation, are duly respected.

Principle II: The corporate governance framework

The corporate governance framework should ensure the strategic guidance of the company, the effective oversight of the company’s




management bodies, an appropriate balance and distribution of functions between the company’s bodies, protection of the

shareholders’ interests.

2.1. Besides obligatory bodies provided for in the Law on | Yes The Company’s managing bodies are the Board of Directors,
Companies of the Republic of Lithuania — a general and the Manager. A Supervisory Board is not formed in the
shareholders’ meeting and the chief executive officer, it is Company. In opinion of the Company’s shareholders, this is
recommended that a company should set up both a collegial sufficient and effective means for the supervision of the
supervisory body and a collegial management body. The functions performed by the Manager.

setting up of collegial bodies for supervision and Allotment of competences and responsibility to the
management facilitates clear separation of management and Company’s managing bodies is set forth in the Company’s
supervisory functions in the company, accountability and Articles of Association, regulations of the managing bodies,
control on the part of the chief executive officer, which, in and the employment contract of the Manager.

its turn, facilitate a more efficient and transparent

management process.

2.2. A collegial management body is responsible for the | Yes With regard to the supervisory body, please refer to our
strategic management of the company and performs other comments under item 2.1.

key functions of corporate governance. A collegial

supervisory body is responsible for the effective supervision

of the company’s management bodies.

2.3. Where a company chooses to form only one collegial | Yes Please refer to our comments under 2.1

body, it is recommended that it should be a supervisory

body, i.e. the supervisory board. In such a case, the

supervisory board is responsible for the effective monitoring

of the functions performed by the company’s chief

executive officer.

2.4. The collegial supervisory body to be elected by the | Yes With regard to the supervisory body, please refer to our
general shareholders’ meeting should be set up and should comments under item 2.1.

act in the manner defined in Principles III and IV. Where a

company should decide not to set up a collegial supervisory

body but rather a collegial management body, i.e. the board,

Principles III and IV should apply to the board as long as

that does not contradict the essence and purpose of this

body.!

! Provisions of Principles III and IV are more applicable to those instances when the general shareholders’ meeting elects the
supervisory board, i.e. a body that is essentially formed to ensure oversight of the company’s board and the chief executive officer and
to represent the company’s shareholders. However, in case the company does not form the supervisory board but rather the board, most
of the recommendations set out in Principles III and IV become important and applicable to the board as well. Furthermore, it should be
noted that certain recommendations, which are in their essence and nature applicable exclusively to the supervisory board, should not
be applied to the board, as the competence and functions of these bodies according to the Law on Companies of the Republic of
Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) are different. For instance, item 3.1 of the Code concerning oversight of the
management bodies applies to the extent it concerns the oversight of the chief executive officer of the company, but not of the board
itself; item 4.1 of the Code concerning recommendations to the management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the provision of
recommendations to the company’s chief executive officer; item 4.4 of the Code concerning independence of the collegial body elected
by the general meeting from the company’s management bodies is applied to the extent it concerns independence from the chief
executive officer.



2.5. Company’s management and supervisory bodies should
comprise such number of board (executive directors) and
supervisory (non-executive directors) board members that
no individual or small group of individuals can dominate

decision-making on the part of these bodies.>

With regard to the supervisory body, please refer to our

comments under item 2.1.

2.6. Non-executive directors or members of the supervisory
board should be appointed for specified terms subject to
individual re-election, at maximum intervals provided for in
the Lithuanian legislation with a view to ensuring necessary
development of professional experience and sufficiently
frequent reconfirmation of their status. A possibility to
remove them should also be stipulated however this
procedure should not be easier than the removal procedure
for an executive director or a member of the management

board.

No

Please refer to our comments under item 2.1.

2.7. Chairman of the collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting may be a person whose current or
past office constitutes no obstacle to conduct independent
and impartial supervision. Where a company should decide
not to set up a supervisory board but rather the board, it is
recommended that the chairman of the board and chief
executive officer of the company should be a different
person. Former company’s chief executive officer should
not be immediately nominated as the chairman of the
collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting.
When a company chooses to departure from these
recommendations, it should furnish information on the
measures it has taken to ensure impartiality of the

supervision.

Principle I11: The order of the formation of a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting

The order of the formation a collegial body to be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting should ensure representation of

minority shareholders, accountability of this body to the shareholders and objective monitoring of the company’s operation and its

management bodies.?

2 Definitions ‘executive director’ and ‘non-executive director’ are used in cases when a company has only one collegial body.

3 Attention should be drawn to the fact that in the situation where the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the
board, it is natural that being a management body it should ensure oversight not of all management bodies of the company, but only of
the single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer. This note shall apply in respect of item 3.1 as well.




3.1. The mechanism of the formation of a collegial body to
be elected by a general shareholders’ meeting (hereinafter in
this Principle referred to as the ‘collegial body’) should
ensure objective and fair monitoring of the company’s
management bodies as well as representation of minority

shareholders.

3.2. Names and surnames of the candidates to become
members of a collegial body, information about their
education, qualification, professional background, positions
taken and potential conflicts of interest should be disclosed
early enough before the general shareholders’ meeting so
that the shareholders would have sufficient time to make an
informed voting decision. All factors affecting the
candidate’s independence, the sample list of which is set out
in Recommendation 3.7, should be also disclosed. The
collegial body should also be informed on any subsequent
changes in the provided information. The collegial body
should, on yearly basis, collect data provided in this item on
its members and disclose this in the company’s annual

report.

3.3. Should a person be nominated for members of a
collegial body, such nomination should be followed by the
disclosure of information on candidate’s particular
competences relevant to his/her service on the collegial
body. In order shareholders and investors are able to
ascertain whether member’s competence is further relevant,
the collegial body should, in its annual report, disclose the
information on its composition and particular competences
of individual members which are relevant to their service on

the collegial body.

3.4. In order to maintain a proper balance in terms of the
current qualifications possessed by its members, the
collegial body should determine its desired composition
with regard to the company’s structure and activities, and
have this periodically evaluated. The collegial body should
ensure that it is composed of members who, as a whole,
have the required diversity of knowledge, judgment and
experience to complete their tasks properly. The members of
the audit committee, collectively, should have a recent
knowledge and relevant experience in the fields of finance,
accounting and/or audit for the stock exchange listed

companies.




3.5. All new members of the collegial body should be
offered a tailored program focused on introducing a member
with his/her duties, corporate organization and activities.
The collegial body should conduct an annual review to
identify fields where its members need to update their skills

and knowledge.

3.6. In order to ensure that all material conflicts of interest
related with a member of the collegial body are resolved
properly, the collegial body should comprise a sufficient*

number of independent’ members.

Yes

In compliance with the Shareholders’ Agreement as of March
24, 2004, concluded amongst the State-owned State Property
Fund, the Russian Public Company ‘Gazprom’, and the
German Company ‘Ruhrgas AG’ (renamed as E.ON Ruhrgas
International AG since July 1. 2004), ‘Gazprom’ and ‘Ruhrgas
AG’ nominate to the Bard of Directors 2 candidates each and
the State Property Fund nominates one candidate. Four
members of the Company’s Board of Directors meet one to

two independence criteria indicated in the Code.

* The Code does not provide for a concrete number of independent members to comprise a collegial body. Many codes in foreign
countries fix a concrete number of independent members (e.g. at least 1/3 or 1/2 of the members of the collegial body) to comprise the
collegial body. However, having regard to the novelty of the institution of independent members in Lithuania and potential problems in
finding and electing a concrete number of independent members, the Code provides for a more flexible wording and allows the
companies themselves to decide what number of independent members is sufficient. Of course, a larger number of independent
members in a collegial body is encouraged and will constitute an example of more suitable corporate governance.

3 It is notable that in some companies all members of the collegial body may, due to a very small number of minority shareholders, be
elected by the votes of the majority shareholder or a few major shareholders. But even a member of the collegial body elected by the
majority shareholders may be considered independent if he/she meets the independence criteria set out in the Code.




3.7. A member of the collegial body should be considered to
be independent only if he is free of any business, family or
other relationship with the company, its controlling
shareholder or the management of either, that creates a
conflict of interest such as to impair his judgment. Since all
cases when member of the collegial body is likely to
become dependant are impossible to list, moreover,
relationships and circumstances associated with the
determination of independence may vary amongst
companies and the best practices of solving this problem are
yet to evolve in the course of time, assessment of
independence of a member of the collegial body should be
based on the contents of the relationship and circumstances
rather than their form. The key criteria for identifying
whether a member of the collegial body can be considered

to be independent are the following:

1) He/she is not an executive director or member of the
board (if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) of
the company or any associated company and has

not been such during the last five years;

2) He/she is not an employee of the company or some
any company and has not been such during the
last three years, except for cases when a member
of the collegial body does not belong to the senior
management and was elected to the collegial body

as a representative of the employees;

3) He/she is not receiving or has been not receiving
significant additional remuneration from the
company or associated company other than
remuneration for the office in the collegial body.
Such additional remuneration includes
participation in share options or some other
performance based pay systems; it does not
include compensation payments for the previous
office in the company (provided that such
payment is no way related with later position) as
per pension plans (inclusive of deferred

compensations);

4) He/she is mnot a controlling shareholder or

representative of such shareholder (control as

Please refer to our comments under item 3.6.




defined in the Council Directive 83/349/EEC
Article 1 Part 1);

5) He/she does not have and did not have any material
business relations with the company or associated
company within the past year directly or as a
partner, shareholder, director or superior
employee of the subject having such relationship.
A subject is considered to have business relations
when it is a major supplier or service provider
(inclusive of financial, legal, counselling and
consulting services), major client or organization
receiving significant payments from the company

or its group;

6) He/she is not and has not been, during the last three
years, partner or employee of the current or
former external audit company of the company or

associated company;

7) He/she is not an executive director or member of the
board in some other company where executive
director of the company or member of the board
(if a collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) is
non-executive director or member of the
supervisory board, he/she may not also have any
other material relationships with executive
directors of the company that arise from their
participation in activities of other companies or

bodies;

8) He/she has not been in the position of a member of

the collegial body for over than 12 years;

9) He/she is not a close relative to an executive director
or member of the board (if a collegial body
elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the
supervisory board) or to any person listed in
above items 1 to 8. Close relative is considered to
be a spouse (common-law spouse), children and

parents.

3.8. The determination of what constitutes independence is

fundamentally an issue for the collegial body itself to

Please refer to our comments under item 3.6.




determine. The collegial body may decide that, despite a
particular member meets all the criteria of independence
laid down in this Code, he cannot be considered
independent due to special personal or company-related

circumstances.

3.9. Necessary information on conclusions the collegial
body has come to in its determination of whether a
particular member of the body should be considered to be
independent should be disclosed. When a person is
nominated to become a member of the collegial body, the
company should disclose whether it considers the person to
be independent. When a particular member of the collegial
body does not meet one or more criteria of independence set
out in this Code, the company should disclose its reasons for
nevertheless considering the member to be independent. In
addition, the company should annually disclose which

members of the collegial body it considers to be

No

The Company has not yet applied the practise of announcing

the independence criteria indicated in the Code (See item 3.6).




independent.

3.10. When one or more criteria of independence set out in | Yes Please refer to our comments under item 3.6.
this Code has not been met throughout the year, the
company should disclose its reasons for considering a
particular member of the collegial body to be independent.
To ensure accuracy of the information disclosed in relation
with the independence of the members of the collegial body,
the company should require independent members to have

their independence periodically re-confirmed.

3.11. In order to remunerate members of a collegial body for | Yes
their work and participation in the meetings of the collegial
body, they may be remunerated from the company’s funds.®.
The general shareholders’ meeting should approve the

amount of such remuneration.

Principle IV: The duties and liabilities of a collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting

The corporate governance framework should ensure proper and effective functioning of the collegial body elected by the general
shareholders’ meeting, and the powers granted to the collegial body should ensure effective monitoring’ of the company’s

management bodies and protection of interests of all the company’s shareholders.

8 It is notable that currently it is not yet completely clear, in what form members of the supervisory board or the board may be
remunerated for their work in these bodies. The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574)
provides that members of the supervisory board or the board may be remunerated for their work in the supervisory board or the board
by payment of annual bonuses (tantiems) in the manner prescribed by Article 59 of this Law, i.e. from the company’s profit. The
current wording, contrary to the wording effective before 1 January 2004, eliminates the exclusive requirement that annual bonuses
(tantiems) should be the only form of the company’s compensation to members of the supervisory board or the board. So it seems that
the Law contains no prohibition to remunerate members of the supervisory board or the board for their work in other forms, besides
bonuses, although this possibility is not expressly stated either.

7 See Footnote 3.




4.1. The collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ | Yes
meeting (hereinafter in this Principle referred to as the
‘collegial body’) should ensure integrity and transparency of
the company’s financial statements and the control system.
The collegial body should issue recommendations to the
company’s management bodies and monitor and control the

company’s management performance.®

4.2. Members of the collegial body should act in good faith, | Yes According to information available to the Company, all the
with care and responsibility for the benefit and in the members of the Board of Directors act in their good will as
interests of the company and its shareholders with due regards the Company and carry out their activities in
regard to the interests of employees and public welfare. compliance with the Company’s interests, not with their own
Independent members of the collegial body should (a) under interests or the interests of third persons, exerting every effort
all circumstances maintain independence of their analysis, to preserve their independence while adopting the resolutions.

decision-making and actions (b) do not seek and accept any
unjustified privileges that might compromise their
independence, and (c) clearly express their objections
should a member consider that decision of the collegial
body is against the interests of the company. Should a
collegial body have passed decisions independent member
has serious doubts about, the member should make adequate
conclusions. Should an independent member resign from his
office, he should explain the reasons in a letter addressed to
the collegial body or audit committee and, if necessary,

respective company-not-pertaining body (institution).

4.3. Each member should devote sufficient time and | Yes
attention to perform his duties as a member of the collegial
body. Each member of the collegial body should limit other
professional obligations of his (in particular any
directorships held in other companies) in such a manner
they do not interfere with proper performance of duties of a
member of the collegial body. In the event a member of the
collegial body should be present in less than a half® of the
meetings of the collegial body throughout the financial year
of the company, shareholders of the company should be

notified.

¥ See Footnote 3. In the event the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the board, it should provide
recommendations to the company’s single-person body of management, i.e. the company’s chief executive officer.

? It is notable that companies can make this requirement more stringent and provide that shareholders should be informed about failure
to participate at the meetings of the collegial body if, for instance, a member of the collegial body participated at less than 2/3 or 3/4 of
the meetings. Such measures, which ensure active participation in the meetings of the collegial body, are encouraged and will constitute
an example of more suitable corporate governance.
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4.4. Where decisions of a collegial body may have a | Yes
different effect on the company’s shareholders, the collegial
body should treat all shareholders impartially and fairly. It
should ensure that shareholders are properly informed on
the company’s affairs, strategies, risk management and
resolution of conflicts of interest. The company should have
a clearly established role of members of the collegial body

when communicating with and committing to shareholders.

4.5. It is recommended that transactions (except | Yes
insignificant ones due to their low value or concluded when
carrying out routine operations in the company under usual
conditions), concluded between the company and its
shareholders, members of the supervisory or managing
bodies or other natural or legal persons that exert or may
exert influence on the company’s management should be
subject to approval of the collegial body. The decision
concerning approval of such transactions should be deemed
adopted only provided the majority of the independent

members of the collegial body voted for such a decision.

4.6. The collegial body should be independent in passing | Yes
decisions that are significant for the company’s operations
and strategy. Taken separately, the collegial body should be
independent of the company’s management bodies'’.
Members of the collegial body should act and pass decisions
without an outside influence from the persons who have
elected it. Companies should ensure that the collegial body
and its committees are provided with sufficient
administrative and financial resources to discharge their
duties, including the right to obtain, in particular from
employees of the company, all the necessary information or
to seek independent legal, accounting or any other advice on
issues pertaining to the competence of the collegial body

and its committees.

1 In the event the collegial body elected by the general shareholders’ meeting is the board, the recommendation concerning its
independence from the company’s management bodies applies to the extent it relates to the independence from the company’s chief
executive officer.
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4.7. Activities of the collegial body should be organized ina | Yes During the reporting year, the committees were not formed.

manner that independent members of the collegial body However, some functions of these committees were performed
could have major influence in relevant areas where chances by the Board of Directors. On a regular basis, the Board of
of occurrence of conflicts of interest are very high. Such Directors evaluated the skills, competence, and experience of
areas to be considered as highly relevant are issues of certain directors; considered the general remuneration policy
nomination of company’s directors, determination of (including application of incentive systems); monitored the
directors’ remuneration and control and assessment of consistency of financial information presented by the
company’s audit. Therefore when the mentioned issues are Company paying special attention to the suitability and
attributable to the competence of the collegial body, it is transparency of accounting methods applied by the Company
recommended that the collegial body should establish and its group.

nomination, remuneration, and audit committees. Pursuant to the Law on Audit, in 2009, the Company plans to
Companies should ensure that the functions attributable to set up an audit committee.

the nomination, remuneration, and audit committees are
carried out. However they may decide to merge these
functions and set up less than three committees. In such case
a company should explain in detail reasons behind the
selection of alternative approach and how the selected
approach complies with the objectives set forth for the three
different committees. Should the collegial body of the
company comprise small number of members, the functions
assigned to the three committees may be performed by the
collegial body itself, provided that it meets composition
requirements advocated for the committees and that
adequate information is provided in this respect. In such
case provisions of this Code relating to the committees of
the collegial body (in particular with respect to their role,
operation, and transparency) should apply, where relevant,

to the collegial body as a whole.

4.8. The key objective of the committees is to increase | Yes Please refer to our comments under item 4.7.
efficiency of the activities of the collegial body by ensuring
that decisions are based on due consideration, and to help
organize its work with a view to ensuring that the decisions
it takes are free of material conflicts of interest. Committees
should present the collegial body with recommendations
concerning the decisions of the collegial body. Nevertheless
the final decision shall be adopted by the collegial body.
The recommendation on creation of committees is not
intended, in principle, to constrict the competence of the
collegial body or to remove the matters considered from the
purview of the collegial body itself, which remains fully
responsible for the decisions taken in its field of

competence.

4.9. Committees established by the collegial body should No Please refer to our comments under item 4.7.
normally be composed of at least three members. In

companies with small number of members of the collegial
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body, they could exceptionally be composed of two
members. Majority of the members of each committee
should be constituted from independent members of the
collegial body. In cases when the company chooses not to
set up a supervisory board, remuneration and audit
committees should be entirely comprised of non-executive
directors. Chairmanship and membership of the committees
should be decided with due regard to the need to ensure that
committee membership is refreshed and that undue reliance

is not placed on particular individuals.

4.10. Authority of each of the committees should be
determined by the collegial body. Committees should
perform their duties in line with authority delegated to them
and inform the collegial body on their activities and
performance on regular basis. Authority of every committee
stipulating the role and rights and duties of the committee
should be made public at least once a year (as part of the
information disclosed by the company annually on its
corporate governance structures and practices). Companies
should also make public annually a statement by existing
committees on their composition, number of meetings and
attendance over the year, and their main activities. Audit
committee should confirm that it is satisfied with the
independence of the audit process and describe briefly the

actions it has taken to reach this conclusion.

Please refer to our comments under item 4.9.

4.11. In order to ensure independence and impartiality of the
committees, members of the collegial body that are not
members of the committee should commonly have a right to
participate in the meetings of the committee only if invited
by the committee. A committee may invite or demand
participation in the meeting of particular officers or experts.
Chairman of each of the committees should have a
possibility to maintain direct communication with the
shareholders. Events when such are to be performed should

be specified in the regulations for committee activities.

Please refer to our comments under item 4.9.

13




4.12. Nomination Committee.
4.12.1. Key functions of the nomination committee should

be the following:

* Identify and recommend, for the approval of the collegial
body, candidates to fill board vacancies. The nomination
committee should evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge
and experience on the management body, prepare a
description of the roles and capabilities required to assume a
particular office, and assess the time commitment expected.
Nomination committee can also consider candidates to
members of the collegial body delegated by the shareholders
of the company;

» Assess on regular basis the structure, size, composition
and performance of the supervisory and management
bodies, and make recommendations to the collegial body
regarding the means of achieving necessary changes;

* Assess on regular basis the skills, knowledge and
experience of individual directors and report on this to the
collegial body;

* Properly consider issues related to succession planning;

* Review the policy of the management bodies for selection

and appointment of senior management.

4.12.2. Nomination committee should consider proposals by
other parties, including management and shareholders.
When dealing with issues related to executive directors or
members of the board (if a collegial body elected by the
general shareholders’ meeting is the supervisory board) and
senior management, chief executive officer of the company
should be consulted by, and entitled to submit proposals to

the nomination committee.

The Company does not form a nomination committee. The
Company’s shareholders have entered into a Shareholders’
Agreement, and nomination to the Company’s managing

bodies is being carried out in compliance with this Agreement.
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4.13. Remuneration Committee.

4.13.1. Key functions of the remuneration committee should
be the following:

* Make proposals, for the approval of the collegial body, on
the remuneration policy for members of management bodies
and executive directors. Such policy should address all
forms of compensation, including the fixed remuneration,
performance-based  remuneration  schemes, pension
arrangements, and termination payments. Proposals
considering performance-based remuneration schemes
should be accompanied with recommendations on the
related objectives and evaluation criteria, with a view to
properly aligning the pay of executive director and members
of the management bodies with the long-term interests of
the shareholders and the objectives set by the collegial body;
* Make proposals to the collegial body on the individual
remuneration for executive directors and member of
management bodies in order their remunerations are
consistent with company’s remuneration policy and the
evaluation of the performance of these persons concerned.
In doing so, the committee should be properly informed on
the total compensation obtained by executive directors and
members of the management bodies from the affiliated
companies;

* Make proposals to the collegial body on suitable forms of
contracts for executive directors and members of the
management bodies;

* Assist the collegial body in overseeing how the company
complies with applicable provisions regarding the
remuneration-related information disclosure (in particular
the remuneration policy applied and individual
remuneration of directors);

» Make general recommendations to the executive directors
and members of the management bodies on the level and
structure of remuneration for senior management (as defined
by the collegial body) with regard to the respective
information provided by the executive directors and
members of the management bodies.

4.13.2. With respect to stock options and other share-based
incentives which may be granted to directors or other
employees, the committee should:

» Consider general policy regarding the granting of the
above mentioned schemes, in particular stock options, and
make any related proposals to the collegial body;

* Examine the related information that is given in the

The Company does not form a remuneration committee. The
Company’s shareholders have entered into a Shareholders’
Agreement, and resolutions concerning remuneration for the
members of managing bodies are being adopted on the basis of

this Agreement.
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company’s annual report and documents intended for the
use during the shareholders meeting;

» Make proposals to the collegial body regarding the choice
between granting options to subscribe shares or granting
options to purchase shares, specifying the reasons for its
choice as well as the consequences that this choice has.
4.13.3. Upon resolution of the issues attributable to the
competence of the remuneration committee, the committee
should at least address the chairman of the collegial body
and/or chief executive officer of the company for their
opinion on the remuneration of other executive directors or

members of the management bodies.

4.14. Audit Committee.

4.14.1. Key functions of the audit committee should be the
following:

* Observe the integrity of the financial information provided
by the company, in particular by reviewing the relevance
and consistency of the accounting methods used by the
company and its group (including the criteria for the
consolidation of the accounts of companies in the group);

* At least once a year review the systems of internal control
and risk management to ensure that the key risks (inclusive
of the risks in relation with compliance with existing laws
and regulations) are properly identified, managed and
reflected in the information provided;

* Ensure the efficiency of the internal audit function, among
other things, by making recommendations on the selection,
appointment, reappointment and removal of the head of the
internal audit department and on the budget of the
department, and by monitoring the responsiveness of the
management to its findings and recommendations. Should
there be no internal audit authority in the company, the need
for one should be reviewed at least annually;

» Make recommendations to the collegial body related with
selection, appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor (to be done by the general shareholders’
meeting) and with the terms and conditions of his
engagement. The committee should investigate situations
that lead to a resignation of the audit company or auditor
and make recommendations on required actions in such

situations;

Pursuant to the Law on Audit, in 2009, the Company plans to

set up an audit committee.
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* Monitor independence and impartiality of the external
auditor, in particular by reviewing the audit company’s
compliance with applicable guidance relating to the rotation
of audit partners, the level of fees paid by the company, and
similar issues. In order to prevent occurrence of material
conflicts of interest, the committee, based on the auditor’s
disclosed inter alia data on all remunerations paid by the
company to the auditor and network, should at all times
monitor nature and extent of the non-audit services. Having
regard to the principals and guidelines established in the 16
May 2002 Commission Recommendation 2002/590/EC, the
committee should determine and apply a formal policy
establishing types of non-audit services that are (a)
excluded, (b) permissible only after review by the
committee, and (c) permissible without referral to the
committee;

* Review efficiency of the external audit process and
responsiveness of management to recommendations made in

the external auditor’s management letter.

4.14.2. All members of the committee should be furnished
with complete information on particulars of accounting,
financial and other operations of the company. Company’s
management should inform the audit committee of the
methods used to account for significant and unusual
transactions where the accounting treatment may be open to
different approaches. In such case a special consideration
should be given to company’s operations in offshore centres
and/or activities carried out through special purpose vehicles

(organizations) and justification of such operations.

4.143. The audit committee should decide whether
participation of the chairman of the collegial body, chief
executive officer of the company, chief financial officer (or
superior employees in charge of finances, treasury and
accounting), or internal and external auditors in the
meetings of the committee is required (if required, when).
The committee should be entitled, when needed, to meet
with any relevant person without executive directors and

members of the management bodies present.

4.14.4. Internal and external auditors should be secured with
not only effective working relationship with management,
but also with free access to the collegial body. For this

purpose the audit committee should act as the principal
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contact person for the internal and external auditors.

4.14.5. The audit committee should be informed of the
internal auditor’s work program, and should be furnished
with internal audit’s reports or periodic summaries. The
audit committee should also be informed of the work
program of the external auditor and should be furnished
with report disclosing all relationships between the
independent auditor and the company and its group. The
committee should be timely furnished information on all

issues arising from the audit.

4.14.6. The audit committee should examine whether the
company is following applicable provisions regarding the
possibility for employees to report alleged significant
irregularities in the company, by way of complaints or
through anonymous submissions (normally to an
independent member of the collegial body), and should
ensure that there is a procedure established for proportionate
and independent investigation of these issues and for

appropriate follow-up action.

4.14.7. The audit committee should report on its activities to
the collegial body at least once in every six months, at the

time the yearly and half-yearly statements are approved.

4.15. Every year the collegial body should conduct the
assessment of its activities. The assessment should include
evaluation of collegial body’s structure, work organization
and ability to act as a group, evaluation of each of the
collegial body member’s and committee’s competence and
work efficiency and assessment whether the collegial body
has achieved its objectives. The collegial body should, at
least once a year, make public (as part of the information the
company annually discloses on its management structures
and practices) respective information on its internal
organization and working procedures, and specify what
material changes were made as a result of the assessment of

the collegial body of its own activities.

The Company’s internal documentation does not stipulate the
individual evaluation of the activities of the Board of
Directors, as this has not been required by Lithuanian law.
Resolutions concerning the Company’s business activities are
adopted by the Board of Directors, which is accountable to the

shareholders’ general meeting.

Principle V: The working procedure of the company’s collegial bodies

The working procedure of supervisory and management bodies established in the company should ensure efficient operation of these

bodies and decision-making and encourage active co-operation between the company’s bodies.
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5.1. The company’s supervisory and management bodies | Yes
(hereinafter in this Principle the concept ‘collegial bodies’
covers both the collegial bodies of supervision and the
collegial bodies of management) should be chaired by
chairpersons of these bodies. The chairperson of a collegial
body is responsible for proper convocation of the collegial
body meetings. The chairperson should ensure that
information about the meeting being convened and its
agenda are communicated to all members of the body. The
chairperson of a collegial body should ensure appropriate
conducting of the meetings of the collegial body. The
chairperson should ensure order and working atmosphere

during the meeting.

5.2. It is recommended that meetings of the company’s | Yes
collegial bodies should be carried out according to the
schedule approved in advance at certain intervals of time.
Each company is free to decide how often to convene
meetings of the collegial bodies, but it is recommended that
these meetings should be convened at such intervals, which
would guarantee an interrupted resolution of the essential
corporate governance issues. Meetings of the company’s
supervisory board should be convened at least once in a
quarter, and the company’s board should meet at least once

amonth'".

5.3. Members of a collegial body should be notified about | Yes
the meeting being convened in advance in order to allow
sufficient time for proper preparation for the issues on the
agenda of the meeting and to ensure fruitful discussion and
adoption of appropriate decisions. Alongside with the notice
about the meeting being convened, all the documents
relevant to the issues on the agenda of the meeting should be
submitted to the members of the collegial body. The agenda
of the meeting should not be changed or supplemented
during the meeting, unless all members of the collegial body
are present or certain issues of great importance to the

company require immediate resolution.

! The frequency of meetings of the collegial body provided for in the recommendation must be applied in those cases when both
additional collegial bodies are formed at the company, the board and the supervisory board. In the event only one additional collegial
body is formed in the company, the frequency of its meetings may be as established for the supervisory board, i.e. at least once in a
quarter.

19




5.4. In order to co-ordinate operation of the company’s | Not No Supervisory Board has been formed in the Company.
collegial bodies and ensure effective decision-making | applicable
process, chairpersons of the company’s collegial bodies of
supervision and management should closely co-operate by
co-coordinating dates of the meetings, their agendas and
resolving other issues of corporate governance. Members of
the company’s board should be free to attend meetings of
the company’s supervisory board, especially where issues
concerning removal of the board members, their liability or

remuneration are discussed.

Principle VI: The equitable treatment of shareholders and shareholder rights

The corporate governance framework should ensure the equitable treatment of all shareholders, including minority and foreign

shareholders. The corporate governance framework should protect the rights of the shareholders.

6.1. It is recommended that the company’s capital should | Yes
consist only of the shares that grant the same rights to
voting, ownership, dividend and other rights to all their
holders.

6.2. It is recommended that investors should have access to | Yes
the information concerning the rights attached to the shares
of the new issue or those issued earlier in advance, i.e.

before they purchase shares.

6.3. Transactions that are important to the company and its | No In accordance with the Lithuanian Company Law and the
shareholders, such as transfer, investment, and pledge of the Articles of Association of the Company, important
company’s assets or any other type of encumbrance should transactions are approved by the Board of Directors.

be subject to approval of the general shareholders’
meeting.'? All shareholders should be furnished with equal
opportunity to familiarize with and participate in the
decision-making process when significant corporate issues,
including approval of transactions referred to above, are

discussed.

'2 The Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania (Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574) no longer assigns resolutions concerning
the investment, transfer, lease, mortgage or acquisition of the long-terms assets accounting for more than 1/20 of the company’s
authorized capital to the competence of the general shareholders’ meeting. However, transactions that are important and material for the
company’s activity should be considered and approved by the general shareholders’ meeting. The Law on Companies contains no
prohibition to this effect either. Yet, in order not to encumber the company’s activity and escape an unreasonably frequent
consideration of transactions at the meetings, companies are free to establish their own criteria of material transactions, which are
subject to the approval of the meeting. While establishing these criteria of material transactions, companies may follow the criteria set
out in items 3, 4, 5 and 6 of paragraph 4 of Article 34 of the Law on Companies or derogate from them in view of the specific nature of
their operation and their attempt to ensure uninterrupted, efficient functioning of the company.
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6.4. Procedures of convening and conducting a general | Yes
shareholders’ meeting should ensure equal opportunities for
the shareholders to effectively participate at the meetings
and should not prejudice the rights and interests of the
shareholders. The venue, date, and time of the shareholders’
meeting should not hinder wide attendance of the
shareholders. Prior to the shareholders’ meeting, the
company’s supervisory and management bodies should
enable the shareholders to lodge questions on issues on the
agenda of the general shareholders’ meeting and receive

answers to them.

6.5. It is recommended that documents on the course of the | Yes
general shareholders’ meeting, including draft resolutions of
the meeting, should be placed on the publicly accessible
website of the company in advance'. It is recommended
that the minutes of the general shareholders’ meeting after
signing them and/or adopted resolutions should be also
placed on the publicly accessible website of the company.
Seeking to ensure the right of foreigners to familiarize with
the information, whenever feasible, documents referred to in
this recommendation should be published in English and/or
other foreign languages. Documents referred to in this
recommendation may be published on the publicly
accessible website of the company to the extent that
publishing of these documents is not detrimental to the
company or the company’s commercial secrets are not

revealed.

6.6. Shareholders should be furnished with the opportunity | Yes
to vote in the general shareholders’ meeting in person and in
absentia. Shareholders should not be prevented from voting
in writing in advance by completing the general voting

ballot.

13 The documents referred to above should be placed on the company’s website in advance with due regard to a 10-day period before
the general shareholders’ meeting, determined in paragraph 7 of Article 26 of the Law on Companies of the Republic of Lithuania
(Official Gazette, 2003, No 123-5574).
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6.7. With a view to increasing the shareholders’
opportunities to participate effectively at shareholders’
meetings, the companies are recommended to expand use of
modern technologies in voting processes by allowing the
shareholders to vote in general meetings via terminal
equipment of telecommunications. In such cases security of
telecommunication equipment, text protection and a
possibility to identify the signature of the voting person
should be guaranteed. Moreover, companies could furnish
its shareholders, especially foreigners, with the opportunity
to watch shareholder meetings by means of modern

technologies.

Taking into consideration the governance framework of
Company’s shareholders and available regulations for
organizing the shareholders’ general meeting, there is no

necessity to additionally expensive IT systems.

Principle VII: The avoidance of conflicts of interest and their disclosure

The corporate governance framework should encourage members of the corporate bodies to avoid conflicts of interest and assure

transparent and effective mechanism of disclosure of conflicts of interest regarding members of the corporate bodies.

7.1. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body should avoid a situation, in which his/her
personal interests are in conflict or may be in conflict with
the company’s interests. In case such a situation did occur, a
member of the company’s supervisory and management
body should, within reasonable time, inform other members
of the same collegial body or the company’s body that has
elected him/her, or to the company’s shareholders about a
situation of a conflict of interest, indicate the nature of the

conflict and value, where possible.

Yes

7.2. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may not mix the company’s assets, the
use of which has not been mutually agreed upon, with
his/her personal assets or use them or the information which
he/she learns by virtue of his/her position as a member of a
corporate body for his/her personal benefit or for the benefit
of any third person without a prior agreement of the general
shareholders’ meeting or any other corporate body

authorized by the meeting.
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7.3. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body may conclude a transaction with the
company, a member of a corporate body of which he/she is.
Such a transaction (except insignificant ones due to their
low value or concluded when carrying out routine
operations in the company under usual conditions) must be
immediately reported in writing or orally, by recording this
in the minutes of the meeting, to other members of the same
corporate body or to the corporate body that has elected
him/her or to the company’s shareholders. Transactions
specified in this recommendation are also subject to

recommendation 4.5.

Yes

7.4. Any member of the company’s supervisory and
management body should abstain from voting when
decisions concerning transactions or other issues of personal

or business interest are voted on.

Yes

Principle VIII: Company’s remuneration policy

Remuneration policy and procedure for approval, revision and disclosure of directors’ remuneration established in the company

should prevent potential conflicts of interest and abuse in determining remuneration of directors, in addition it should ensure

publicity and transparency both of company’s remuneration policy and remuneration of directors.

8.1. A company should make a public statement of the
company’s  remuneration  policy (hereinafter the
remuneration statement). This statement should be part of
the company’s annual accounts. Remuneration statement

should also be posted on the company’s website.

No

This accounting year, the Company did not publicly announce

its remuneration policy, as this is not stipulated by Lithuanian

law. The Company’s remuneration policy is fixed by taking

into account the results of analyzing the situation in the local

labour market.

8.2. Remuneration statement should mainly focus on
directors’ remuneration policy for the following year and, if
appropriate, the subsequent years. The statement should
contain a summary of the implementation of the
remuneration policy in the previous financial year. Special
attention should be given to any significant changes in
company’s remuneration policy as compared to the previous

financial year.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.
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8.3. Remuneration statement should leastwise include the
following information:

* Explanation of the relative importance of the variable and
non-variable components of directors’ remuneration;

* Sufficient information on performance criteria that entitles
directors to share options, shares or variable components of
remuneration;

+ Sufficient information on the linkage between the
remuneration and performance;

» The main parameters and rationale for any annual bonus
scheme and any other non-cash benefits;

* A description of the main characteristics of supplementary

pension or early retirement schemes for directors.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.

8.4. Remuneration statement should also summarize and
explain company’s policy regarding the terms of the
contracts executed with executive directors and members of
the management bodies. It should include, inter alia,
information on the duration of contracts with executive
directors and members of the management bodies, the
applicable notice periods and details of provisions for
termination payments linked to early termination under
contracts for executive directors and members of the

management bodies.

No

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.

8.5. The information on preparatory and decision-making
processes, during which a policy of remuneration of
directors is being established, should also be disclosed.
Information should include data, if applicable, on authorities
and composition of the remuneration committee, names and
surnames of external consultants whose services have been
used in determination of the remuneration policy as well as

the role of shareholders’ annual general meeting.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.

8.6. Without prejudice to the role and organization of the
relevant bodies responsible for setting directors’
remunerations, the remuneration policy or any other
significant change in remuneration policy should be
included into the agenda of the shareholders’ annual general
meeting. Remuneration statement should be put for voting
in shareholders’ annual general meeting. The vote may be

either mandatory or advisory.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.
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8.7. Remuneration statement should also contain detailed
information on the entire amount of remuneration, inclusive
of other benefits, that was paid to individual directors over
the relevant financial year. This document should list at
least the information set out in items 8.7.1 to 8.7.4 for each
person who has served as a director of the company at any
time during the relevant financial year.

8.7.1. The following remuneration and/or emoluments-
related information should be disclosed:

* The total amount of remuneration paid or due to the
director for services performed during the relevant financial
year, inclusive of, where relevant, attendance fees fixed by
the annual general shareholders meeting;

* The remuneration and advantages received from any
undertaking belonging to the same group;

* The remuneration paid in the form of profit sharing and/or
bonus payments and the reasons why such bonus payments
and/or profit sharing were granted;

« If permissible by the law, any significant additional
remuneration paid to directors for special services outside
the scope of the usual functions of a director;

» Compensation receivable or paid to each former executive
director or member of the management body as a result of
his resignation from the office during the previous financial
year;

* Total estimated value of non-cash benefits considered as
remuneration, other than the items covered in the above
points.

8.7.2. As regards shares and/or rights to acquire share
options and/or all other share-incentive schemes, the
following information should be disclosed:

» The number of share options offered or shares granted by
the company during the relevant financial year and their
conditions of application;

» The number of shares options exercised during the relevant
financial year and, for each of them, the number of shares
involved and the exercise price or the value of the interest in
the share incentive scheme at the end of the financial year;
* The number of share options unexercised at the end of the
financial year; their exercise price, the exercise date and the
main conditions for the exercise of the rights;

« All changes in the terms and conditions of existing share
options occurring during the financial year.

8.7.3. The following supplementary pension schemes-

related information should be disclosed:

Please refer to our comments under item 8.1.
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» When the pension scheme is a defined-benefit scheme,
changes in the directors’ accrued benefits under that scheme
during the relevant financial year;

* When the pension scheme is defined-contribution scheme,
detailed information on contributions paid or payable by the
company in respect of that director during the relevant
financial year.

8.7.4. The statement should also state amounts that the
company or any subsidiary company or entity included in
the consolidated annual financial statements of the company
has paid to each person who has served as a director in the
company at any time during the relevant financial year in
the form of loans, advance payments or guarantees,

including the amount outstanding and the interest rate.

8.8. Schemes anticipating remuneration of directors in
shares, share options or any other right to purchase shares or
be remunerated on the basis of share price movements
should be subject to the prior approval of shareholders’
annual general meeting by way of a resolution prior to their
adoption. The approval of scheme should be related with the
scheme itself and not to the grant of such share-based
benefits under that scheme to individual directors. All
significant changes in scheme provisions should also be
subject to shareholders’ approval prior to their adoption; the
approval decision should be made in shareholders’ annual
general meeting. In such case shareholders should be
notified on all terms of suggested changes and get an

explanation on the impact of the suggested changes.

8.9. The following issues should be subject to approval by
the shareholders’ annual general meeting:

* Grant of share-based schemes, including share options, to
directors;

* Determination of maximum number of shares and main
conditions of share granting;

* The term within which options can be exercised;

* The conditions for any subsequent change in the exercise
of the options, if permissible by law;

* All other long-term incentive schemes for which directors
are eligible and which are not available to other employees
of the company under similar terms. Annual general
meeting should also set the deadline within which the body
responsible for remuneration of directors may award

compensations listed in this article to individual directors.

No

The Company currently does not have any such remuneration

scheme.

The issues mentioned have not been discussed at the
shareholders’ annual general meeting; the Company’s Articles

of Association also do not stipulate such a procedure.
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8.10. Should national law or company’s Articles of
Association allow, any discounted option arrangement under
which any rights are granted to subscribe to shares at a price
lower than the market value of the share prevailing on the
day of the price determination, or the average of the market
values over a number of days preceding the date when the
exercise price is determined, should also be subject to the

shareholders’ approval.

The issues mentioned have not been discussed at the
shareholders’ annual general meeting; the Company’s Articles

of Association do not stipulate such a procedure.

8.11. Provisions of Articles 8.8 and 8.9 should not be
applicable to schemes allowing for participation under
similar conditions to company’s employees or employees of
any subsidiary company whose employees are eligible to
participate in the scheme and which has been approved in

the shareholders’ annual general meeting.

8.12. Prior to the annual general meeting that is intended to
consider decision stipulated in Article 8.8, the shareholders
must be provided an opportunity to familiarize with draft
resolution and project-related notice (the documents should
be posted on the company’s website). The notice should
contain the full text of the share-based remuneration
schemes or a description of their key terms, as well as full
names of the participants in the schemes. Notice should also
specify the relationship of the schemes and the overall
remuneration policy of the directors. Draft resolution must
have a clear reference to the scheme itself or to the summary
of its key terms. Shareholders must also be presented with
information on how the company intends to provide for the
shares required to meet its obligations under incentive
schemes. It should be clearly stated whether the company
intends to buy shares in the market, hold the shares in
reserve or issue new ones. There should also be a summary
on scheme-related expenses the company will suffer due to
the anticipated application of the scheme. All information
given in this article must be posted on the company’s

website.

Please refer to our comments under item 8.8.

Principle IX: The role of stakeholders in corporate governance

Stephan Kamphues,

The corporate governance framework should recognize the rights of stakeholders as established by law and encourage active co-

operation between companies and stakeholders in creating the company value, jobs and financial sustainability. For the purposes of

this Principle, the concept “stakeholders” includes investors, employees, creditors, suppliers, clients, local community and other

persons having certain interest in the company concerned.
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9.1. The corporate governance framework should assure that
the rights of stakeholders that are protected by law are

respected.

9.2. The corporate governance framework should create
conditions for the stakeholders to participate in corporate
governance in the manner prescribed by law. Examples of
mechanisms of stakeholder participation in corporate
governance include: employee participation in adoption of
certain key decisions for the company; consulting the
employees on corporate governance and other important
issues; employee participation in the company’s share
capital; creditor involvement in governance in the context of

the company’s insolvency, etc.

9.3. Where stakeholders participate in the corporate
governance process, they should have access to relevant

information.

Compliance with this recommendation is ensured by the
precise supervision and control of the Company’s business
activities by the state-owned institutions and associated
consumer organizations. The publicity of the Company’s
business activities creates conditions for stakeholders to
participate in the governance of the Company in compliance
with the procedure established by law as well as in compliance
with the Company’s Articles of Association and Inner
Regulations. Managing bodies are consulting with employees
on the issues of governance of the Company and other
substantial issues; the participation of employees in the

Company’s share capital is not limited.

Principle X: Information disclosure and transparency

The corporate governance framework should ensure that timely and accurate disclosure is made on all material information

regarding the company, including the financial situation, performance and governance of the company.
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10.1. The company should disclose information on:

* The financial and operating results of the company;

» Company objectives;

* Persons holding by the right of ownership or in control of
a block of shares in the company;

* Members of the company’s supervisory and management
bodies, chief executive officer of the company and their
remuneration;

» Material foreseeable risk factors;

* Transactions between the company and connected persons,
as well as transactions concluded outside the course of the
company’s regular operations;

* Material issues regarding employees and other
stakeholders;

» Governance structures and strategy.

This list should be deemed as a minimum recommendation,
while the companies are encouraged not to limit themselves

to disclosure of the information specified in this list.

10.2. It is recommended that consolidated results of the
whole group to which the company belongs should be
disclosed when information specified in item 1 of

Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.3. It is recommended that information on the professional
background, qualifications of the members of supervisory
and management bodies, chief executive officer of the
company should be disclosed as well as potential conflicts
of interest that may have an effect on their decisions when
information specified in item 4 of Recommendation 10.1
about the members of the company’s supervisory and
management bodies is under disclosure. It is also
recommended that information about the amount of
remuneration received from the company and other income
should be disclosed with regard to members of the
company’s supervisory and management bodies and chief

executive officer as per Principle VIII.

10.4. It is recommended that information about the links
between the company and its stakeholders, including
employees, creditors, suppliers, local community, as well as
the company’s policy with regard to human resources,
employee participation schemes in the company’s share

capital, etc. should be disclosed when information specified
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in item 7 of Recommendation 10.1 is under disclosure.

10.5. Information should be disclosed in such a way that
neither shareholders nor investors are discriminated with
regard to the manner or scope of access to information.
Information should be disclosed to all simultaneously. It is
recommended that notices about material events should be
announced before or after a trading session on the Vilnius
Stock Exchange, so that all the company’s shareholders and
investors should have equal access to the information and

make informed investing decisions.
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10.6. Channels for disseminating information should
provide for fair, timely and cost-efficient access to relevant
information by users. It is recommended that information
technologies should be employed for wider dissemination of
information, for instance, by placing the information on the
company’s website. It is recommended that information
should be published and placed on the company’s website
not only in Lithuanian, but also in English, and, whenever

possible and necessary, in other languages as well.

10.7. It is recommended that the company’s annual reports
and other periodical accounts prepared by the company
should be placed on the company’s website. It is
recommended that the company should announce
information about material events and changes in the price
of the company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on the

company’s website t0o.

The Company complies with this recommendation and

information has been placed on its website www.dujos.It

Principle XI: The selection of the company’s auditor

The mechanism of the selection of the company’s auditor should ensure independence of the firm of auditor’s conclusion and

opinion.

11.1. An annual audit of the company’s financial statements
and report should be conducted by an independent firm of
auditors in order to provide an external and objective

opinion on the company’s financial statements.

11.2. It is recommended that the company’s supervisory
board and, where it is not set up, the company’s board
should propose a candidate firm of auditors to the general

shareholders’ meeting.

11.3. It is recommended that the company should disclose to
its shareholders the level of fees paid to the firm of auditors
for non-audit services rendered to the company. This
information should be also known to the company’s
supervisory board and, where it is not formed, the
company’s board upon their consideration which firm of

auditors to propose for the general shareholders’ meeting.

An audit company receives from the Company remuneration
for consulting on tax and business issues, which does not
contradict the independence requirements set by Lithuanian
law on audit and the normative acts of the Commission for

Securities of Lithuania.
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